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Minutes:                                                 Att. #1 – 22 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on SB 2056.  
 
(1:08)Senator Jordan Kannianen, District 4: See Attachment #1 for testimony in support 
of the bill.  
 
(5:20)Chairman Klein: When I see the word federal, it throws up a flag, are we able to just 
strike their name out of the language? Will you straighten out for us as to why we can cross 
out the words federal bureau and just wing it on the state and still comply? Or will those guys 
not be able to work with the two-bit electrician in Stanley on regular projects they wouldn’t be 
able if we can just strike this to work federal projects?   
 
Jordan: When it was originally introduced the federal bureau, the apprenticeship and 
training, wasn’t in the original bill, it was amended in later, and the idea was that they already 
have these training programs all set up, so to kind of go with them. And it took a number of 
years for the unintended consequences to really come out. As far as to change it now, there’s 
nothing that would prohibit us from changing it. But then also it’s not the intent to exclude any 
good program that’s currently in place for those that are already using it. The state electrical 
board would certainly work with what’s already in place but this would expand the 
opportunities the course work offerings.   
 
(9:04)Senator Kreun: Living on the border, does that effect the licensure of the contractor? 
If you’ve got a license in both Minnesota and North Dakota, will you be able to work back and 
forth in those two states with just a state of North Dakota licensure board giving that individual 
a license? 
 
Jordan: My understanding is that this change wouldn’t affect the reciprocity agreements of 
any of the neighboring states.  
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Chairman Klein: I think we’ll hound Mr. Schmidt about that a little bit. As I’ve sat on this 
committee over the years, what someone would suggest is fence building, because certainly 
we’re attempting to, as reciprocity for example, if you’re qualified in another state and then 
you come here and you have to go through all the testing and stuff. Why? And so we’ll wait 
and find other people to ask about that.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: It seems like if North Dakota was lined up with federal standards it would 
make things easier, why aren’t the NDSC programs aligned with the federal standards? 
 
Jordan: I honestly don’t know why, I’ll let others speak to that.  
 
Chairman Klein: Not every state is the same, and we have unique challenges and we should 
have some flexibility.  
 
(11:48)Scott Porsborg, Special Assistant Attorney General for the North Dakota State 
Electrical Board: See Attachment #2 for testimony in support of the bill.   
 
(16:40)Chairman Klein: It comes down to a variety of issues. First of all, right now with the 
workforce challenges but certainly always trying to keep the consumer safety in mind, so the 
training is certainly important. And apprenticeship is certainly important. If you’ve only done 
what this bill is requiring, then you wouldn’t be allowed to work on a federal program or bid? 
 
Scott: That would be a question for the executive director but my gut is telling me that the 
contractor needs to be approved as a federally. 
 
Chairman Klein: Okay, because when you see that a lot of contractors have their own 
programs and do not want to be approved by the federal government. That would suggest to 
me, that if they have their own programs, they wouldn’t be allowed to do any federal work.  
 
Scott: Right. They wouldn’t work on the air base. They wouldn’t work on a federal building.  
 
(19:12)James Schmidt, Executive Director, North Dakota State Electrical Board: See 
Attachment #3 for testimony in support of the bill.   
 
(24:37)Chairman Klein: We’re most interested in that you’re attempting to fix an issue that 
we created. In an attempt to help these apprentices along. Because of the way this read, and 
the attorney general’s concerns, we said they couldn’t do it. We’re sure that there were was 
disappointment out there or maybe words spoken to you. And by deleting or changing this 
language, those apprentices, once they did the same thing they did back in August for you, 
you will be able to move their certificates forward. That’s the gist of that language on the first 
page?  
 
James: Yes, to remove the departmental ruling. To remove the BAT out of there, put the 
board in there. Because as Scott mentioned, the electrical board is in charge of college 
curriculums now so why can’t it be in charge of the apprentices that take the related training. 
I don’t understand it because what I wanted to do when I first took this job was create and 
education committee to vet these programs. This is not just apprentices, but there is also 
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journeyman training that goes on for continuing ed and all that. There is a need for an 
education committee as part of the board.  
 
Chairman Klein: That’s something you’d do internally, right James?  
 
James: Yes, if this goes forward the plan is to pursue that. And have these players that are 
part of this now, be part of that group. A spot for JATC and the department of labor if they 
would like to be a part of it. The college of science, the IEC, some large contractors with 
training programs. Right now it’s about James doing this, it’s just my opinion but there needs 
to be educators involved.  
 
Chairman Klein: But the focus is on that particular issue and correcting the wrong that we 
created? At least in the opinion that we’re hearing right now.  
 
Senator Kreun: Just a question in your testimony, it says in visiting with the North Dakota 
director of US department of labor, his main concern was losing their number of apprentice 
programs they have ongoing if the law was to change. Is the federal program losing that, and 
they’re just worried about losing apprentice programs or are they really worried about how 
many people we can put out to work? 
 
James: This made it to the attention of the government’s office. We had a meeting with the 
director of the department of labor and myself, Ashley from our office, we had Tony Grinburg 
from the outreach program, job services, they asked me to explain what happened, that’s 
when the department of labor was concerned that he was going to lose programs. And I said 
that anybody that wants to have a program can have one. That’s not going to affect what 
we’re doing at all. They can go do their thing. Because it’s about companies that want to work 
on federal jobs and do that path and that’s fine. And we’ll recognize that. But to have the 
board in charge of that, not have two people in charge of the same thing. It’ll get convoluted. 
I’m willing to work with them. I don’t know what the fear is there. Him and I met over at Scott’s 
office, and he was scared of losing numbers and his main focus on jobs is to create 
apprenticeship programs and electrical, plumbing, and sheet metal. It struck me funny 
because our intention isn’t to take away or put down anything he is doing but let the state 
agency handle its business. That’s all I’m trying to do here.  
 
(31:15 James’ testimony continues) 
 
(33:53)Chairman Klein: I would just add that the governor has put a lot of money in 
workforce training and development and it’s good to see and industry taking that on and 
trying to develop additional students that want to. I’m happy that there’s an electrician to call 
when the heating or the furnace goes out.   
 
James: Somebody had mentioned about licensure in neighboring states, so the electrical 
board is a part of the national electrical reciprocal alliance, theres 18 states involved. Right 
now we have reciprocity with a dozen states, journeymen and master electricians, it doesn’t 
affect working across borders, we talk about these issues twice a year.  
 
(36:50)Bill Kalanek, National Electrical Contractors Association, Dakotas Chapter: See 
Attachment #4 for testimony in support of the bill.  
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(38:14)Chairman Klein: The last amendment on page 3 be deleted, which is the? 
 
Bill: The underscored language on page 3, the board may expend funds and educate. Not 
necessarily to complicate things anymore 
 
Chairman Klein: To keep our power limited technicians? 
 
Bill: I think so, considering the board isn’t authorized to regulate those individuals, they’re 
not defined in the code yet. I don’t think it’s appropriate to have it in the bill at this point.  
 
(39:00) Russell Wyman, Supervisor L&K Electric: See Attachment #5 for testimony in 
support of the bill.  
 
(40:51) Brad Wangler, Owner/Operator of Rugby Electric: See Attachment #6 for 
testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(43:10)Chairman Klein: You are one of those cases that left the state and came back?  
 
Brad: That’s true 
 
Chairman Klein: And you came back to Rugby? 
 
Brad: I was born and raised in Rugby, and it came to where Rugby didn’t have a lot to offer 
me, and at that time I wasn’t really sure that the state offered me a lot. Had an opportunity to 
go work in Colorado, I actually got my education through the IEC, they are a BAT accredited 
program. And living in a larger city, they had different classrooms available for us to be able 
to take those courses. Rugby obviously doesn’t have, in the whole city there are seven or 
eight apprentices in the whole city. So that doesn’t really justify having that kind of class 
setting, to have that ability to do that. We had kids and decided it was a better opportunity to 
move back. And I knew what was available here and I knew what it was for our upbringing, 
so I wanted to get my kids a better upbringing. Prior to moving back to Rugby, I was a director 
of operations for a $200 million+/year and I had over 2,000 employees working for me so we 
had the resources available to have these BAT accredited programs in place in house. And 
we followed all those rules and we did a lot of government work. Since coming back here, 
we were unaware of that requirement and we just opened in 2015, I’m trying to expand a 
business and trying to do it the right way and then find out, because I have an apprentice 
that ready to test now, and get his license.   
 
Senator Roers: Did you take the federal testing that was previously required? Did you 
personally take that test? 
 
Brad: It was still through the state of Colorado, but the contractors if they were gonna be 
doing work on a government project we had to be BAT approved in order to do that.  
 
Senator Roers: Can you explain the differences between being BAT approved and approved 
by the state program? 
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Brad: Well the state program would be all the decisions would be through that, but you 
wouldn’t have all the certified. Every week we had to deal with certified payroll reports that we 
had to produce. We had to have documentation of six-month apprentice evaluations, that had to 
be performed every six months per their standard requirement. The appropriate pay raises would 
have to follow with that. Like James said you’d have apprentice 1-8 so a first year, first six-month 
apprentice would be an A1 and a first year, second six-month apprentice would be an A2. You 
would work it A1-A8 in that regard. And you had certain milestones that you had to meet in order 
to stay BAT approved. And if you had an apprentice that didn’t get a raise for state performance 
reasons, then it became a whole other red tape nightmare to try to explain why you weren’t 
giving raises to your employees. It brought a whole other level of influence, from people that 
really shouldn’t have anything to do with it.  

 
Senator Roers: The federal jobs, lets say you go to Minot airforce base, you’re gonna have 
to have the BAT approved program?  
 
Brad: Correct.  
 
Senator Roers: So if its not approved, don’t they automatically go up the journeyman scale? 
 
Brad: They would automatically get a journeyman scale wage, which is what disadvantages 
a company like us from being able to be competitive if we’re bidding that project.   
 
(48:12)Darcy Schmidt, Master Electrician from Dickinson: See Attachment #7 for 
testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(49:19)Ashley Windhorst, Administrative Assistant, North Dakota State Electrical 
Board:  See Attachment #8 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(50:37)Stephen Reger, Willow Creek Electric: See Attachment #9 for testimony in support 
of the bill.  
 
(52:39)Chairman Klein: I appreciate you coming. I’m glad we’re getting a cross section of 
folks who have been effected differently. It’s good to know that it’s an issue wherever you 
live.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: What kind of plants were you working on? 
 
Stephen: The compressor stations are our primary, but all of the oil refineries and oil gas 
plants. The ones outside of Watford City, Oasis the target plant. All of those are under the 
gun. We just did a phase 2 on the Oasis plant, and before that was done, they want to start 
a phase 3. Its gonna be the biggest operation in North Dakota. The day they turn online, 
they’re at capacity. If you ever see a shutdown on one of these, and the flairstacks go off, 
every flairstack around the country starts getting about three times the size. And they’re all 
getting fined.  
 
Chairman Klein: So what you’re saying is we’re going to reduce flairing, you get your work 
done by the end of the year?  
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Stephen: Yes, quite significantly. One gentleman who owns several oil wells said that he 
gets paid $1500 a day when they’re not able to process his one well and that’s multiplied by 
all the wells out there.  
 
(54:00)Wayde Sick, State Director for the Department of Career and Technical 
Education: See Attachment #10 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(57:00)Matt Koble, Director of Human Resources for Magnum Electric: See attachment 
#11 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(59:04)Chairman Klein: On the last line says you support this bill without amendments, 
you’ve heard the discussion about amendments, do you want to just give me your opinion 
about what you’re thinking here? 
 
Matt: I think originally, in 2007 when this legislation came into place, is that some other 
individuals, somewhere thought that they had to be the BAT language into the bill, not 
understanding the longterm ramification of what would happen or where we’re at today or 
why we’re here today. So by leaving the wording as is, it does put that power. It doesn’t harm 
or effect the DOL or office of apprenticeship at all. But it does put that oversight back into 
North Dakota’s own hands. So that we can have that level of quality control again.  
 
Chairman Klein: But the words power limited technicians? 
 
Matt: I could probably agree with that, until we actually get PLP’s at the board. Once that 
actually gets enacted in the future then obviously yes.  
 
Chairman Klein: So if that was struck then? 
 
Matt: I’m either way on that one.   
 
(1:00:38)Steve Mundahl: See Attachment #12 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(1:01:56)Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on SB 2056.  
 
See Attachments #13-22 for additional testimony submitted to the committee on SB 2056.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to electrician qualifications; and license renewal; and to declare an emergency. 
 
Minutes: 
Chairman Klein: Opened committee work session on SB 2056.  
 
Chairman Klein: About the amendments, power limited technicians, they said it wasn’t an 
issue. Senator Kannianen suggested he’s not sure why counsel even put that in there. So 
we’re gonna hold off on this until I make sure I get in touch with Kannianen and Mr. 
Schmidt, because I know those three words were the only three words that seemed to be 
the biggest issue.  
 
Senator Roers: If we wait for the other bill that’s coming that deals with the technicians, then 
that solves that problem.  
 
Chairman Klein: You are exactly correct. Mr. Schmidt says that the other bill will take care 
of that issue.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Are there pay discrepancies? Like mandatory pay increases in the BAT 
federal program compared to the North Dakota program? 
 
Senator Kreun: More or less.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: They demand or require more? And steeper pay increases along the way 
than the North Dakota program? 
 
Senator Roers: If we approve this North Dakota journeyman program and then you go to a 
project that requires BAT, don’t all of those apprentices automatically go up to a journeyman 
scale, and he said the answer is yes. And I’ve experienced that before, when you don’t have 
an approved apprenticeship program by the federal government anybody that’s an 
apprentice automatically becomes a journeyman because it’s not an approved program. So 
to answer your question, is there pay issues, yes, they automatically go up to the highest of 
number. 
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Senator Kreun: Unless you’re already, Burgstrom is the only one who has a whole program, 
so it doesn’t really affect him but what happens is, if one of these smaller electrical companies 
wants the bid and do a small job on that, and they don’t have it, their pay is automatically 
raised to that higher level whereas Burgstrom doesn’t have to because have this program in 
place. And then every time just because of the labor, the larger company is gonna force that 
small guy out of the bid because they have to use that high labor rate while Burgstrom 
doesn’t.  
 
Chairman Klein: We’re just talking about 2056 and the fact that we’re gonna hold it over, I’d 
like to discuss it while we have a few minutes.  
 
Senator Roers: I think by bringing these standards down to a state level these companies 
are going to develop these programs and in due time they’re gonna say oh we need to get 
to Grand Forks airforce base and we’re gonna have to go by the BAT rules and they’re gonna 
do whatever it takes to get it, because its exactly what we experienced is that it’s a 
competition issue. That happens in every trade, if you don’t have an approved apprentice 
program, every trade, carpenters, iron workers, dry wallers, they all move up to the 
journeyman scale. And that’s high, it’s gonna be 40% higher than what you’d pay as an 
apprentice. And so I think it’s a good think for the state of North Dakota, making them 
journeyman puts them on a scale of professionalism and that’s gonna be good for the 
industry. So I really like what we’re doing here, bring it down. And now think about this, these 
guys do four years of training and they go to class for 500-900 hours. How many of us have 
trained journeyman that put that kind of time in? Not many.  
 
Senator Kreun: Visiting with Burgstrom, they said yeah it might affect us a little bit but it’s 
the right thing to do because there’s more work out there than they can handle. And he said, 
just what you said, eventually we’re gonna be able to have a higher, better pay system down 
the road. I don’t think it’s a negative aspect in any respect from what I’ve heard and seen.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: If you go to two years at Wahpeton you still have to have four years, 
plus the 576 or you don’t need the 576 anymore?  
 
Senator Roers: I think the two years equals the 576. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: And now 576 what’s that?  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: The 576 is on the job, in house training. So you can knock out those 
two years of school but it still goes towards your four years when you’re doing that 576? 
 
Senator Roers: I don’t know if the years in school apply to the 8,000, I don’t know if that 
would be true. I think its four years or 8,000 hours on the job. So you either take two years 
of school or 576 of training.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: But the 576, as you’re working 8,000 hours, and you’re taking that 
schooling in the evening.  
 
Senator Kreun: I think it does but I don’t know.  
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Vice Chairman Vedaa: Maybe that 576 doesn’t go to that 8,000 I bet it doesn’t.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: hours? 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Yes, hours. What they do is they meet on like a Wednesday night 
and have class for like four hours. Once a week.  
 
Senator Roers: They have to finish that 8,000.  
 
Chairman Klein: Just the number sounds monumental.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Well what did the one guy say, it was $30,000 hit to some of these 
guys? 
 
Senator Roers: I was wondering where that $30,000 came from. What was that hit about? 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Well I think that’s how much they’re losing in pay because they can’t 
move up that journeyman spot.  
 
Chairman Klein: As soon as they bump up from apprentice to journeyman it sounded to me 
that the $30,000 follows them. 
 
Senator Kreun: Well it’s the salary and the amount of hours that they’re working out there.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: What is the equivalent quality of educational experience that can be used 
as a credit against those 8,000 hours of on the job experience. Its says the board may 
determine, equivalent hours of education.  
 
Chairman Klein: Is that new language? Where are you at? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: The bottom of page one.  Of the bill.  
 
Chairman Klein: We would have to ask the director that.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: You know what I mean, online courses work great for some stuff and not 
for heart surgery.  
 
Chairman Klein: Well I’ll get this ironed out and we’ll see if we can get it out by next week.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Quick question about that amendment, I don’t know why the board 
shouldn’t be able to expend funds to educate and encourage potential electricians. Maybe 
that’s where that power limited technicians are at.  
 
Chairman Klein: Power limited technicians does not exist.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Okay, that just doesn’t exist? 
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Chairman Klein: Well it could exist. There will be another bill to create the power limited 
technician category which came before us last session. Which is a particular technician that 
works primarily in the oil fields? 
 
Senator Roers: No basically they are mobile, wiring. Its mobile wiring for data, digital, audio, 
all these. It’s getting to a digital era.  

 
Chairman Klein: It seemed to be the bill came from, Ron Ness was here last session to 
testify for it along with uh, because out west they were struggling because they have a lot of 
particular work that they do but nobody wanted to have that done.  
 
Senator Roers: They want it to be able to have a classification for low voltage wiring, I’ll call 
it. Which covers all of those arenas. And have those people qualified. And right now 
electricians have to come down as the only qualified person. And that’s not always good. It’s 
been good for us, because every time we bid that out the electricians end up getting that kind 
of work. But they want to create this new classification so that there can be another option.   
 

Senator Piepkorn: And that would get paid less? 
 
Senator Roers: Different education but probably the pay is the same. \ 
 
Chairman Klein: Well it’s just they don’t have to do 8,000 hours. And then they get paid less 

because they’re not qualified to the degree. But there’s a niche there and the attempt is to try to 
fill that niche with people who don’t want to go through that whole process and then if they do, 
they will eventually, ya know, it takes a while to become a master electrician.  

 
Senator Roers: One other question I had today while discussing this, okay well we’re gonna 
get all these people classified as journeyman. What about taking them from journeymen to 
master now? What is that looking like now, cause you’re gonna have a ton of journeymen 
and there’s gonna be some of those kids that say hey I wanna be at the top of the food chain. 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Or if they say I want to go out on my own? 
 
Senator Roers: That’s exactly right.  
 
Chairman Klein: I thought the interesting point was the gentleman who, Matt, who 
suggested that we fill that, the next journeyman can take another and the web gets bigger. 
Continue to grow the industry.  
 
Senator Roers: Well his comment was getting how do you have journeyman that are able 
to train rather than be trained. That’s a very good point. 
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the committee work session on SB 2056.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to electrician qualifications; and license renewal; and to declare an emergency.  
 
Minutes: 
Chairman Klein: Opened a committee work session on SB 2056.  
 
Chairman Klein: I have the amendments for 2056. There is another bill out there that is 
going to address power limited technicians. And so if you see these amendments were 
prepared by the author of the bill, Senator Kannianen. So that’s all the bill would do. All the 
changes would just change those three words. Or four words. Any questions? 
 
Senator Roers: So it would just take power limited technicians out of the bill? 
 
Chairman Klein: This does not deal with power limited technicians. We have no definition in 
electrical code yet for power limited technicians. Senator Kannianen didn’t know why they 
put it in but that was probably because the same person was preparing legislation to allow 
power limited technicians which is in another bill which we haven’t seen yet. So we were 
getting ahead of ourselves by allowing this for that group.  
 
Senator Roers: So this bill helps with the licensing of the journeymen?  
 
Chairman Klein: Of the apprentices to become journeymen because we were holding them 
up in the apprenticeship program.  
 
Senator Roers: Okay, perfect.  
 
Chairman Klein: As you recall, the gentleman, Brad from Rugby, has three apprentices. But 
because of the federal issue, that came before them. They couldn’t license those apprentices 
and thus, they’re hung up in kind of a limbo but it’s all in that testimony.  
 
Senator Roers: I believe what we’re talking about is relaxing some requirements to move 
apprentices to journeymen, and once they become journeymen they can take on three more 
apprentices and that’s where he was getting, it was bottlenecking his ability to hire more 
people.  
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Chairman Klein: Because of the BAT, national requirement that required 900 hours, most 
apprentices had 536 hours, it was not allowing those, because of the federal rule, it wasn’t 
allowing those apprentices to move forward. And Mr. Schmidt’s presentation, as is Senator 
Kannianen’s, Mr. Schmidt’s kind of gives it clearer. And Scott, the assistant attorney general, 
Scott Porsborg’s comments were equally, very explanatory.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Moved a Do Pass on the Amendment.  
 
Senator Roers: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Voted Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Roers: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Senator Roers will carry the bill.  
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2056: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2056 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 3, line 14, remove "or power limited technicians" 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol 

SB 2056 
2/27/2019 

32934 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Electrician qualifications and license renewal. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1 - 23 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on SB 2056. 
 
Jordan Kannianen~District 4 Senator:  Attachment 1. 
 
5:35 
 
Rep Adams:  When you go to electrical school, they need 8,000 on the job training, would 
they need more hours if they didn’t go to an accredited school? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  If you went to a school that wasn’t accredited, the electrical board would 
have to know in advance. 
 
Rep Adams:  Could a person with just 8,000 hours to become a journeyman? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  Yes. 
 
Rep Richter:  When they take a test to go from an apprentice to a journeyman, is it just from 
journeyman then master or is it both? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  Both. 
 
Rep Richter:  Is it hours of training or continuing ed hours? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  For all the training, it would potentially count.  That’s the problem, a lot of 
training isn’t currently approved. 
 
Rep Laning:  Do you think that going this would have any sort of impact on reciprocity on 
other states? 
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Sen Kannianen:  This wouldn’t have any effect on reciprocity. 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Are there any limits set on the trade or is it wide open? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  The language doesn’t specify any people or limits.  The intent is to work 
with the CTE in terms of limits.   
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Page 3, they don’t have that authority now? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  My understanding is that they don’t. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Looks like you are cutting the federal bureau of apprentice.  Would an 
electrician not having that federal bureau stamped on his record cause issues if he leaves 
ND & goes to another state? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  The reciprocity wouldn’t affect anything.  The electrical board would have 
approved & shouldn’t have any affect. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Are we lowering the standard of education? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  No, I don’t think so. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Additional education, is it on line? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  There is a whole mix offered. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  This isn’t onerous that you take the education requirement? 
 
Sen Kennianen:  I don’t know. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Explains what the bill is trying to do.  This is an antiquated system of 
licensing.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  The board is a regulated entity & they collect monies.  They have a fund 
with a reserve to meet their obligations.  If there is a surplus, do you use the money to recruit 
students in the program.  Is that what this bill is trying to do? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  Yes, it’s a fair assessment. 
 
Rep Laning:  The 8,000 hours, is that somewhat reduced if they go to school?  Is there any 
credit for a 2-year degree prior to that? 
 
Sen Kannianen:  Yes. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  I think like the electrical board has 11 million dollars, why are we charging 
for the education of the 16 hours? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  This bill will allow it. 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
SB 2056 
Feb 27, 2019 
Page 3  
   

 
Scott Porsborg~Special Assistant Attorney General for the ND State Electrical Board:  
Attachment 2. 
 
Rep Richter:  A workshop for 2 days to prepare for the test, they couldn’t take the test? 
 
Scott Porsborg:  I really can’t answer that question. 
 
James Schmidt~Executive Director of the ND Electrical Board:  Attachment 3. 
 
35:45 
 
Rep Kasper:  What is magic about 8,000 hours, why? 
 
James Schmidt:  That’s the way it’s always been.  Also, there is a wide spectrum to get 
trained & get familiar. 
 
Rep Kasper:  The ability for you to grant reciprocity with experience, is there another place 
in statute? 
 
James Schmidt:  We fall back on the term “regulates similar rules to ND”.  We have to be 
similar to the rest of the states.  
 
Rep Kasper:  What gives you that right for reciprocity, it just says 8,000 hours of experience, 
so you can grant reciprocity from other states? 
 
James Schmidt:  Yes, that is the criteria.   
 
Rep Kasper:  I want to make sure that you can do what you want & should do. 
 
James Schmidt:  I believe we do. 
 
Rep Bosch:  How many electricians do you think that we are short right now? 
 
James Schmidt:  Approximately 900. 
 
Rep Bosch:  How long have we been short? 
 
James Schmidt:  I can’t give you a definitive answer. 
 
Rep Bosch:  I’m concern that you can’t put together a strategy? 
 
James Schmidt:  That’s why we are asking Wade/CTE to do. 
 
Rep Bosch:  I’m curious why we didn’t make that phone call earlier. 
 
James Schmidt:  We haven’t been pressured with the funds we have. 
 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
SB 2056 
Feb 27, 2019 
Page 4  
   

Rep Richter:  The biggest problem was that we couldn’t find instructors.  With the language 
in section, will it allow you to put on staff in high schools or the building instructors?  Will this 
language allow you to do that? 
 
James Schmidt:  Currently right now, that there are no high school electrical courses, it’s all 
building.  We are thinking about giving it a shot. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  What is your pass/fail rate? 
 
James Schmidt:  About 65% pass rate, it’s a tough exam. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Do they come back again? 
 
James Schmidt:  If they score above 50 they have 3 months & below 50, they wait for 6 
months to retake the test. 
 
Randy Bartsh~An electrician:  I’m in favor of the bill because it’s leaving a lot of apprentices 
hanging in limbo.  I would like the board to reconsider striking the “federal bureau of 
apprenticeships” because it has no bearing on what they are trying to fix.  That is the gold 
standard for apprenticeships with all the requirements they have. 
 
Rep Kasper:  What is your opinion for 8,000 hours? 
 
Randy Bartsh:   I think it’s a good thing.  It’s a wide variety of information. 
 
Rep Bosch:  Did I understand you said that the electrical board should stick to inspections 
& leave the training for someone that is their business? 
 
Randy Bartsh:   They should be allowed to vet programs, but the bureau of apprenticeships 
is the gold standard.  They have the highest standards, run them through, so you don’t waste 
the time. 
 
Steven Mundahl~Hatton, ND-current Master Electrician:  Attachment 4. 
 
57:00 
 
Rep Schauer:  Are you convinced for the electrical board to taking over the vetting & not 
have a single iota of loss of safety when it comes to the education? 
 
Steven Mundahl:  I believe so. 
 
Rep Adams:  When an apprentice comes, is he assigned to one electrician for his full 4 
years or does he move around? 
 
Steven Mundahl:  We cycle them to different areas. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  You have to be good in all 4 segments to pass the test. 
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Rep P Anderson:  Do you have women entering the field? 
 
Steven Mundahl:  Yes we do. 
 
Jeff Kirstein~Executive Director-Independent Electrical Contractors Association:  
Attachment 5. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify on HB SB 2056 in support, opposition, neutral 
position.  Closes the hearing. What are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep Adams:  Moves a Do Pass on SB 2056. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further questions? 
 
Roll call was taken on SB 2056 for a Do Pass with 12 yes, 0 no, 2 absent & Rep Laning 
is the carrier. 
 
 

Submitted testimony: 
 
Attachment   6:  Jon Rieger~Partner in RBB Electric. 
Attachment  7:  Wayde Sick~State Director for the Department of Career & Technical 
Education. 
Attachment   8:  Ashley Windhorst~Administrative Assistant-ND State Electrical Board. 
Attachment   9:  Reid Mann~Branch Manager-L & K Electric. 
Attachment 10:  Josh Defoe~Electrical Apprentice-L & K Electric. 
Attachment 11:  Darcy Schmidt~Master Electrician. 
Attachment 12:  Brad Wangler~Master Electrician & Owner/Operator of Rugby Electric. 
Attachment 13:  Richard Schwingler~Frontier Electric Inc. 
Attachment 14:  Caralea Vogelsang~Apprentice Electrician. 
Attachment 15:  Bill Kalanek~On behalf of the Dakotas Chapter of the National Electrical 
Contractors Association. 
Attachment 16:  Chase Carson~Apprentice for AH Inc. 
Attachment 17:  Tyler Thorson~Apprentice Electrician at AH Inc. 
Attachment 18:  Brandon Cluff~AH Inc. 
Attachment 19:  Clayton Schenck~One of the Owners of Magnum Electric Inc. 
Attachment 20:  Riley Blevins~AH Inc. 
Attachment 21:  Daniel Garcia~Apprentice Electrician at AH Inc. 
Attachment 22:  Stephen Regar~Electrician working the oil fields. 
Attachment 23:  Matt Koble~Director of Human Resources for Magnum Electric. 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2056, as engrossed: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, 

Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT 
VOTING). Engrossed SB 2056 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 
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Testimony on SB 2056 

Jordan Kannianen - District 4 Senator 

Section 1 - Education requirements 

Eight-thousand hours of work experience are required for an apprentice electrician to qualify to 

take the Journeyman Electrician exam. In 2007, education requirements were added to the 

qualifications, requiring either 2 years of appropriate study at a board-approved institution of 

higher education or a course of study approved by the federal bureau of apprenticeship and 

training. 

This bill replaces the federal bureau of apprenticeship and training with the state electrical 

board as the approving authority regarding apprenticeship training courses. This way, all 

education requirements will be under the authority of the state electrical board. 

ND State College of Science, Independent Electrical Contractors and others offer electrical 

apprenticeship training courses that are not approved by the federal bureau but that could be 

approved by the state electrical board. Confusion has resulted in individuals taking the 

unapproved courses and then not being eligible to take the Journeyman exam, and many 

electrical contractors in the state (such as myself) are not in a position to register for federal 

programs. This leaves the apprentices working under these contractors in a position of having 

to go to school to complete the education requirement instead of pursuing another option . 

Sometimes unintended consequences take years to bear fruit, and there are now apprentice 

electricians being denied the opportunity to take the Journeyman Electrician's exam. 

The passage of this bill would result in more individuals being eligible to take the Journeyman 

Electrician's exam. 

Section 2 - Undertaking Fund 

This section eliminates references to the undertaking fund which was eliminated in 2015. 

Section 3 - Authority to expend funds 

This section adds language to allow the state electrical board to expend funds to work with CTE 

and others to promote the trade. 

Section 4 - Emergency Clause 

About 15 apprentice electricians could be approved by the board to take the Journeyman exam 

immediately if the emergency clause carries. 
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Testimony on Senate Bill 2056 

• My name is Scott Porsborg, Special Assistant Attorney General for the ND State 
Electrical Board. I'm here to address the legal problem that led to this bill. If you look at the 
current wording of NDCC 43-09-11, it says that one of the ways you can become eligible to 
become a journeyman electrician is to attend training classes, while you're working on the job, 
so we can ensure you are educated in the technical aspects of being an electrician. 

A number of entities provide this training. The outreach program at the State School of 
Science is one. The unions also provide it. Some electrical contractors set up their own 
programs to provide the training. 

When this statute was passed in 2007, it was passed with the following language: 

[in order to be a journeyman electrician, you must have] "Successfully completed 
apprenticeship training approved by the federal bureau of apprenticeship and training." 
("BAT") 

The executive director can explain how this issue came to be known, but ultimately, I 
was asked the question by the board. Can we accept the outreach program at the School of 

•
Science as this training? I asked: Is it approved by the bureau of apprenticeship and training? 
The answer was no. So, we had no choice but to disallow that training. Because the language 
of the statute is clear. 

There are other problems that have arisen with this language. The statute says 
"successfully completed" training approved by BAT. Well the JATC-the union -is approved 
by BAT but has a 900-hour program. Most programs are 576-the federal minimum. So, kids 
in the JATC program come to the board and say "I've completed as much training as this 
person; can I take the test too?" And I ask the question: "has he or she successfully completed 
apprenticeship training approved by the bureau of apprenticeship and training?" And the 
answer is no, because the training program BAT approved for the JATC is 900 hours. 

There are also a number of electrical contractors that have their own programs that are 
not and do not want to be approved by the federal government. There are a number of 
paperwork requirements and pay scale requirements that do along with that approval that do 
not benefit some contractors. 

So, by removing the department of labor from our statute and giving the board the 
authority to approve programs, it solves this problem. That's how we got here and that's why 

• we ask for a do pass on SB 2056. 



• TESTIMONY in SUPPORT of SB 2056 Electrical Education 

PRESENTED BY JAMES SCHMIDT 

• 

• 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NORTH DAKOTA STATE ELECTRICAL BOARD 

Chairman Klein and Members of the Committee: 

Senate Bill 2056 was introduced with the knowledge and support 

of the North Dakota State Electrical Board. The portion of the bill 

addressing apprenticeship education should be considered as a house 

keeping issue. To give you some history at the 2007 Legislative session 

a law was passed requiring an education requirement for an individual 

to become a licensed electrician in ND. I did not attend any of those 

committee hearings at that time but I was serving as a member of the 

ND State Electrical Board. I recall the focus at that time was about 

making sure apprentice electricians were educated and trained through 

a proper educational path prior to or during their apprenticeship. After 

the requirement for apprentice education was put into place, two 

options were available for apprentices to meet the education 

requirement. One option was for an apprentice to earn a 2-year 

electrical degree at a technical college or the other option is referred to 

as "related training" where the apprentice would attend classroom 

education of 144 hours per year (total of 576 hours) while working at a 

full time electrical job for 4 years or 8,000 hours. 

This past August, the ND Director of the US Department of Labor Office 

of Apprenticeship, Bismarck, ND, pointed out to me that our office was 

breaking the current ND Law NDCC 43-09-ll.2(b)(l) by accepting 

apprentices to write the journeyman exam that have not included a 

certificate of completion issued by their federal office. I brought this to 

the attention of our board. The board concluded, along with the 

board's special assistant attorney general, that I was to start accepting 

for exam only apprentice applications that include the certificate of 

1 
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• completion issued by the Federal DOL. Prior to August our office had 
been accepting letters of completion from the apprentice education 
providers such as the ND College of Science Outreach program, 
Independent Electrical Contractors, Joint Apprenticeship and Training 
and other education providers. A requirement to receive a Federal 
Department of Labor certificate of completion, the apprentice would 
also need to be enrolled in a Federal Department of Labor 
apprenticeship program sponsored by their employer. The main reason 
for cleaning up this law is several of the apprentices, employers and 
education providers do not have a federal department of labor 
apprenticeship programs and do not intend to or cannot create one. 
One of the reasons a company would have a department of labor 
approved program is for working on government funded projects 
where prevailing wages apply. In visiting with the ND director of US 
Department of Labor, his main concern was losing their number of 

• 

• 

apprentice programs they have ongoing if the law was to change. I 
assured him that if this law changes and puts the board in charge of the 
ND apprentice education that, by administrative rule, I would suggest 
the board create an education committee of trades persons, which the 
DOL could participate in, would review/advise the board on all 
educational areas for electricians not just apprenticeships. 

I've received nearly 100 calls from apprentices and their employers who 
are caught in this situation of never being able to receive any type of 
DOL certificate of completion because of the current law and would 
never be able to advance to be a journeyman electrician or their 
specific DOL apprenticeship program may require more than what is 
required by NDSEB administrative rule which is 576 hours. Holding an 
apprentice back like this costs them money in lost wages and also 
handicaps the employers from sending these employees out to jobsites 
by themselves as licensed journeyman electricians. Currently we've 
had to return several applications because these apprentices did not 
include nor can they ever earn the DOL certificate of completion. 

2 
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• Several weeks ago this situation was brought to the attention of the 
governor's office. I was called to a meeting there to discuss if there was 
a temporary solution for this situation until the law could be changed 
for these apprentices. The response from the governor's office was the 
law needs to change before the apprentices could take the journeyman 
exam that does not have a department of labor certificate of 
completion. 

• 

• 

Currently under the same section of the North Dakota Century Code, 
the board approves institutions of higher education 2-year college 
electrical degree courses for the individual who attends college so why 
not let the board be the only entity that also approves the related 
training courses for the individuals who choose not to go to college? 

Due to the urgency of rectifying this problem, Senator Kannianen has 
put an emergency clause on this bill so our office can resume what we 
were doing prior to this past August and allow apprentices to take their 
exam which will put more licensed electricians in the field to fill the gap 
of the workforce shortage. 

This proposed bill also addresses the shortage of workforce by 
proposing to expend funds to educate and encourage individuals to 
come into the electrical trade. I have met with and discussed with the 
staff at ND Career Technical Education various ways for the NDSEB to 
try solving the electrician workforce shortage. The discussions were for 
CTE to manage a special category in which the board would seek 
different ways to encourage young people into the electrical trade. 
Some of the thoughts were to do a marketing campaign, offer 
incentives to become an electrician, apprentice scholarships, reimburse 
electricians to assist in high school industrial arts electrical programs 
and to explore the further development of education in the electrical 
field. 

Therefore we respectfully urge a do pass vote on the original version of 
SB 2056 without any additional amendments or changes that others 

3 
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• might suggest as we do not want to delay passage of this emergency 
bill which will continue to hold up apprentices from taking their ND 
Journeyman Exam. As soon as this bill passes and becomes law, our 
office will open up our conference room to those apprentices that are 
caught in this situation and give exams daily if that's what it takes to 
allow them to get on with their careers. 

• 

• 

I thank the bill sponsors and this committee for hearing my 
comments and I would be happy to answer any questions you may 
have 

4 
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Testimony 
Senate Bill 2056 

Senate Industry, Business & Labor Committee 
January 9th

, 2019 
Bill Kalanek 

National Electrical Contractors Association, Dakotas Chapter 

Good Afternoon Chairman Klein and members of the committee. My name is Bill Kalanek and I'm here 
today on behalf the Dakotas Chapter of the National Electrical Contractors Association. I'd like to 
express our support of the concept of the bill. 

I think we all recognize the need for highly skilled men & women working in the trades here in ND. We 
at NECA believe this bill was conceived with that intention. There is a great need for more well trained 
electricians in the state and with some amendments I think we can accomplish this. 

The original language of the bill strikes the reference in code to the "federal bureau of apprenticeship 
and training", we feel that although the intent of this may be to allow other options when it comes to 
training, it removes from code the reference to a national standard recognized throughout the United 
States. With the amendment I've distributed I believe we can accomplish the goal the State Electrical 
Board is seeking and maintain the integrity of what is an accepted standard. 

We would also suggest that the last amendment to the code on Page 3 be deleted as there is no 
definition of "power limited technicians" in code. Additionally, it is the mandate of the State Electrical 
Board to license and inspect, it is not designed to provide education. 

Please consider the amendments provided and I appreciate the committee's time today. 

Thank you 



Proposed Amendment to SB 2056 

Page 1, Line 13-16, Replace subsection (1) with the following language. 

(1) Successfully completed apprenticeship training from a federal bureau of apprenticeship and 
training program or equivalent consisting of a minimum 576 hours of appropriate related 
training approved by the board and completed eight thousand hours' experience in installing 
and repairing electrical wiring, apparatus, and equipment 

Page 3, Line 13-14, Overstrike "The board may expend funds to educate and encourage potential 
electricians or po1.ver limited technicians into the trade" 

• 



• 

• 

Reid Mann (Branch Manager) L&K Electric, Williston ND . 

Russell Wyman (Supervisor) L&K Electric, Williston ND. 

Here to support Bill SB  2056 in regard to North Dakota State Electrical Board approved training is able to 
be one recognized for apprentice's education without having business requirements. 

L&K Electric was led to believe that the North Dakota State College of Science Outreach Program was 
approved education for electrical apprentices. L&K Electric was unaware that the US Dept. of Labor was 
involved and does not feel it's necessary for them to be involved. L&K Electric has not done any Federal 
projects in the past. We are confident the NDSEB can set the standards for our apprentices whether it 
be online training or classroom training so please remove the federal department labor requirement 
from ND law. 

L&K Electric currently has two apprentices unable to test due to this issue which is hurting our business 
and the two employees mentioned. 

Thank you for your time and consideration regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Reid Mann, Branch Manager 

Russell Wyman, Electrical Supervisor 



• 

• 
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Good Morning. My name is Brad Wangler. I am a Master Electrician and owner/operator of Rugby 
Electric, located in Rugby North Dakota. We were established in 2015 and currently employ 3 
apprentices. 

I am here to testify on behalf of my company and my apprentice, Mr. Brady Olsen. 

Mr. Olsen was employed by my company on 1 May 2016. Since his employment date, Mr. Olsen has 
worked as my apprentice for a total of 5,225.5 hours. These hours, in conjunction with apprentice hours 
served with Bartsch Electric of Rugby, North Dakota gave Mr. Olsen more than the qualifying number of 
hours (8,000) necessary to become eligible to take the Journeyman's Licensing Examination. 

In October 2018, Mr. Olsen successfully completed the Journeyman's Licensing Examination Preparation 
Course. After completing this course, Mr. Olsen submitted to the State Electrical Board, all of the 
required paperwork, and requested a date to take the Journeyman's Licensing Examination. This 
request was denied. Upon further investigation, it was brought to our attention that the reason this was 
denied is because his hours were not properly registered with the Bureau of Labor. Rather, they were 
accumulated through verifiable payroll reports and submitted to the State Electrical Board for their 
approval. Mr. Olsen has employment verification documentation from myself as well as his previous 
employer, and is in excess of the required 8,000 hours to take the test. 

As a new electrical contractor in the State of North Dakota, I was unaware of the requirement to register 
with the Bureau of Labor. Mr. Olsen is currently on hold in his ability to take his journeyman's test until 
this matter is resolved. If the State does not maintain control of these hours, we fear that he would 
stand to lose credit for the hours that he has worked while unregistered with the Bureau of Labor. This 
would prove detrimental to his desire to remain active in the Electrical work place. 

Finally, as a new contractor with the intent to grow my business within the State of North Dakota, the 
passing of this Bill is critical to our success. We have reached our maximum for apprentice to 
journeyman ratio, and every day that goes on without resolution to this matter is costing us both 
financially as well as missed opportunities. We appreciate your consideration. Thank you . 



• 
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Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Darcy Schmidt I am a master 

electrician from Dickinson North Dakota I'm in favor of the changes to this bill because 

1. As the end user of electricians, we need to have experience licensed electricians 

and the way it is now we cant get any of our experienced apprentices licensed 

when they have followed what they thought were the steps to advance their 

career if they need to start over we will have a shortage in North Dakota of good 

electricians also if this is not changed and we have to say all electrician that 

tested since 2008 are not licensed this will defiantly cause a very big shortage of 

electricians in North Dakota 

2. So I ask that you make these changes as soon as possible so we can all keep 

doing a great job in the electrical field 

3. Thank you 



• 
Testimony in Support of Senate Bill 2056 

Presented by Ashley Windhorst, Administrative Assistant, North Dakota State Electrical Board 

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee: 

I am in full support of SB  2056. As the individual that processes the applications for exam, I feel this is a 

small technicality when it comes to who the completion certificate comes from which has now 

prevented individuals from advancing in their careers. The completion certificates NDSEB has accepted 

prior to being told we were breaking the law, were from the programs which have all been reviewed and 

approved by the Department of Labor. I was unaware that an individual could not obtain a completion 

from DOL unless they were federally registered. This requirement has prevented many individuals from 

taking their exam, which not only puts a hardship on them but their employers as well. 

• 
Thank you for your time, if you have any questions, I would be happy to try and answer them . 

• 
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9 J a nua ry 2019 

To Whom it may concern ,  

As a Master e lectr ic ia n work ing in the  o i l  fie l d s  of Western North Dakota s i n ce 2008, I 

s uppo rt the  l eg i s l at ion a l lowi ng  e l ectr ica l  a pp rent ices to acq u i re the i r  n eeded e lectr ica l  

educat ion by non trad it iona l  means .  

The  p ressu re to comp l ete ou r  projects keeps  us  i n  the fie l d  fo r extended  per iods  of  the 

d ay a nd  week. A typ ica l  day i s  10 hours on  the  job a nd  u sua l ly a n  hour  commute to and  from 

the  p roject. Ou r  no rma l  work week i s  6 d ays b ut can  change to 7 twe lve hour  days du ri ng  

s h ut downs o r  sta rt u p  of p l ants . The  few rema i n i ng hou rs d u r i ng  the  day do not a l low for 

forma l i n  house tra i n i ng. We re ly on the correspondence sty l e  cou rses offered th rough the 

No rth Dakota State School of Science i n  Wahpeton .  

I n  t he  10 p l u s  yea rs I 've been work i ng  i n  the N D  o i l  patch, we have never b i d  on  a ny  

Federa l  Bacon/Davis p rojects that wou l d  req u i re o u r  company to register o u r  apprent ices .  

We cu rrent ly have severa l app rent ices that a re ready to test out b ut a re u nab le  to due so 

because of th is fl aw in the p revious  leg is lat ion  requ i r i ng  Federa l  registrat ion .  The Federa l  

gove rnment shou l d  have no i nfl uence whatsoever in the State l icens ing of North Dakota 

E l ectr i c i an s .  

I wou l d  imp lo re the Legi s lato rs to  reverse th i s  oversite and  a l low the North Dakota 

State Boa rd of E l ectr ic ity to resume  l i cens i ng  requ i rement as t hey were pr io r  to th i s .  

S i n cere ly, 

Stephen Patr ick Reger 

USN  Ret i red 



Senate I ndustry ,  Bus i ness and Labor 
SB 2056 

January 9 ,  20 1 9  

Cha i rman  Kle i n  and members of the Senate I ndustry ,  Bus i ness and Labor Comm ittee , my 
name is Wayde Sick and I am the State D i rector for the Department of Career and Techn ica l  
Ed ucation . I am here to testify i n  support of  Senate B i l l  2056 ,  specifica l ly page 3 ,  sect ion 3 ,  
l i nes 1 3  and 1 4 .  

As you a re aware , North Dakota , and the rest of the country for that matter ,  i s  suffering from a 
sk i l l s  gap .  We conti n uous ly hear that the lack of a sk i l led workforce is what is ho ld ing our  
state 's  economy from g rowi ng . A solut ion to  attempt to  fi l l  th is  gap is Career and Techn ica l 
Ed ucation  o r  CTE . CTE provides career exp loration and hands-on experience for students to 
he lp  them fi nd the i r  correct ca reer path . For many years , the percept ion is that CTE is for the 
students that can 't hand le  co l lege , but t imes have changed . The workers needed to fi l l  these 
jobs need more tech n ica l tra i n i ng that ever ,  to be ab le to th i nk  crit ica l ly ,  and work as a team ,  a l l  
sk i l l s  that a re taught i n  CTE cou rses . 

I n  October of th is year ,  I met James Schm idt with the State E lectr ical Board . He was testify ing 
i n  front of an  i nter im leg is lative comm ittee stat ing the e lectr ica l board was i n  need to expend 
the i r  funds  and the p riority was to spend funds i n  h i gh  school CTE prog rams to fi l l  the 
workforce needs ,  specifica l ly for futu re electric ians .  Cu rrently there are no e lectr ica l prog rams 

• 
in  any of our h i gh  schoo ls .  What we do have is 22 Bu i l d i ng  Trades Prog rams ,  with 
approximate ly 780 students enro l led on an annua l  bas is .  Although ,  e lectrica l standards are 
i nc luded i n  the bu i l d i ng  trades standards ,  we be l ieve instructors cou ld use he lp  i n  expand i ng 
the i r  p rog rams to sta rt meeti ng the e lectric ian workforce needs .  

N DCC 1 5-20 . 1 - 1 6 . 1  with in  the CTE centu ry code chapter ,  states "The director, with the 
approval of the state board, may accept and use gifts made unconditionally by will or otherwise 
for carrying out the purposes of this chapter. Gifts made under such conditions as in the 
judgment of the state board are proper and consistent with the provisions of this chapter may 
be so accepted and must be held, invested and reinvested, and used in accordance with the 
conditions of the gift. " After vis iti ng with D i rector Schm idt ,  the Office of Management and 
Bus i ness , the State Aud itor's Office and the Attorney Genera l ' s  office , we have conc luded that 
the North Dakota E lectrica l Board , with the consent of the leg is latu re th rough passage of SB 
2056 ,  can "g ift" fu nds  to the Department of Career and Techn ica l Ed ucation to expand the 
access of e lectrica l cu rricu l um to more students . CTE is i nterested i n  partneri ng with the 
e lectrica l board to fu rther engage students by connecti ng them with emp loyers . Early ideas we 
have had a re to deve lop a statewide market ing campa ign for e lectr ica l ca reers , h i re an 
i nd iv id ua l  to engage with students i n  the h igh  schoo ls ,  deve lop or  pu rchase cu rricu l um ,  
i nstructor tra i n i ng , etc . CTE wants to partner with bus i ness and  ind ustry to  prov ide for access 
to a l l  students and wi l l  fo l low the E lectrica l Board 's  lead with the i r  i ntent .  

Th is conc ludes my testimony and I wou ld be happy to answer any questions at th is time .  
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Chairman Klein and Members of the Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 

My name is Matt Koble and I am the Director of Human Resources for Magnum Electric ,  an electrical 
contractor based in West Fargo, ND and has 3 other locations across the state. 

I am here in support of Senate Bi l l  2056, of which changes current wording of the North Dakota Century Code. 
It does this to eliminate confusion on which entity can approve electrician apprenticeship program completion, 
then allowing the North Dakota State Electrical Board (NDSEB) to approve apprentices in ND to sit for their 
Journeyman ' s  Exam. I am also in support of the NDSEB being able to expend funds to help promote the 
electrical industry to future generations and help encourage them that the industry is a strong career choice for 
their futures .  

What i s  currently happening, i s  that the Century Code as written states that al l  electrician apprenticeship 
training in ND needs to be approved by the (formally named) Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training 
(cun-ently named US Department of Labor (DOL), Office of Apprenticeship Training) . In practice, the NDSEB 
has had the last say on which schools and/or apprenticeship programs have their curriculums approved in 
accordance with the electrical codes and practices of the State of ND. This is done for the benefit of consumers 

•(homeowners, businesses, industries, etc . )  by the NDSEB as a quality control measure, as not all schools and 
forms of education are equal . This education that NDSEB then approves, qualifies said apprentice electricians 
to test for their Journeyman' s  Exam, and some day also their Master' s Exam with additional required 
experience. With current wording in the Century Code, the NDSEB doesn' t  truly have final say on which 
schools or programs are up to the standards of the NDSEB and ND.  

With that current wording, our company currently has 2 apprentices that are qual ified to test for their 
Journeyman ' s  Exam today, but are not at this time allowed to do so as their  education was not Federally 
registered as asked by the Century Code. In our business practices, we have not done so as the paperwork and 
compl iance is an additional level of burden and our apprentices would only need to be registered with the DOL 
if we were to pay them an apprenticeship rate (lower pay rate) on Federal Prevai ling Wage proj ects . We do not 
perform an abundance of these type of proj ects, and have instead opted to pay the full pay rates on these 
proj ects (apprentices paid at same level as Journeymen) . These 2 apprenti ces have completed the required 576 
hours of education from NDSEB approved schools (Independent Electrical Contractors (IEC) and also North 
Dakota State Col l ege of Science (NDSCS)) and 8 ,000 hours of experience as needed by the NDSEB . But 
because the schooling and hours were not "registered" with the US DOL, via the Century Code the NDSEB 
won ' t  currently al low them to advance their careers that they have worked so hard towards over more than 4 
years . Come May of this year, we wi l l  have an additional 5 apprentices stopped at the same point in their 
careers due to this current wording. In the following 3 years we would have an additional 1 8  apprentices 
stopped as wel l .  To put that into comparison, please realize that we are only just one of the many electrical 
contractors that operate in this  State and the others surely have apprentices that this Century Code wording is 
and will be impacting . 
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Changing of this wording wil l  not lessen the importance of the US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship Training and 
the apprenticeship programs they oversee . It al lows the NDSEB to be the final say when it comes to curriculum 
and the qual ity of these said programs,  and again performing a type of qual ity control for the consumers of ND. 
The US DOL doesn ' t  have set "standards" when it comes to apprenticeship education curriculum, nor do they 
approve or sanction providers of education. The US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship has more of a purpose to 
increase apprenticeship opportunities across many different trades and occupations, and provide strong paths to 
the middle-class for empl oyees while also helping employers gain much needed ski l led and educated staff 
during these times of tough hiring markets .  In many cases, the US  DOL, Office of Apprenticeship works 
directly with an organization or single employer to create an apprenticeship program via their set Federal 
standards. But, those standards more apply to the duration of on-the-j ob training, how advancement of wages 
occurs, and that education is a "requirement" but do not lay out whom provides said education or who is 
qual ified to provide it . The US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship is doing its best for the individual benefit of 
employees and employers , whi le the NDSEB is looking out for the end users (consumers) of the electrical 
indus try . 

Giving the NDSEB the ab i lity to also expend surplus funds to promote the electrical industry is also a must , as 
there is a nationwide mass shortage of electric ians . Employers and industry spend a large amount of time 
promoting our trade to h igh schoo l s and the general publ ic al ready. The electrical industry is a strong path to a 
career that can support the fam i l ies and other industries of North Dakota, but not enough people are aware of it . 
By hav ing the NDSEB also suppo11 and promote the same industry it oversees , it creates new opportunities 

•within the state for organ izations to grow and in the long-term create a stronger, safer, and even more educated 
workforce. 

In passing of Senate Bill 2056 ,  it wi l l  a l low the NDSEB to once again have the final say on which 
apprenticeship programs or schoo ls meet the standards of North Dakota and this State ' s Journeyman and Master 
Electrician testing requirements . It wi l l  a lso al low the NDSEB to expend surplus funds to help promote the 
industry as a who le ,  and help grow future professional and knowledgeable electric ians for the State of North 
Dakota . 

Thank you for spending time to read through this testimony, and we ask for your support without amendments 
for Senate B i l l  2056 .  

Sincerely, 

Matt Koble 
HR D irector 
Magnum Electric Inc 
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Steven S .  M u ndah l 
2255 Eag le Ave . 

Hatton ,  N D  58240 
(701) 799-6310 

Mr. o r  Madam Cha i rman and members of the com m ittee , my name is Steven S .  
M undah l  from Hatton ,  North Dakota . I am a cu rrent Master E lectr ic ian i n  the State of 
North Dakota and  I am here today to ask for you to vote i n  favor of SB2056 . I wou ld  l i ke 
to exp la i n  my reason for be ing here today. 

I am the fathe r  of an e lectr ica l apprent ice cu rrent ly en ro l led in the ! EC-Dakotas class 
cu rricu l u m  and he works for a company that has a federa l ly reg istered apprenticesh ip  
p rog ra m ,  wh ich a l l ows h im to  take h is jou rneyman 's  test once h is schoo l i ng  is  comp lete 
a long with meeti ng  h is hou r  requ i rement. But if my son were to leave the emp loyment 
of h is cu rrent emp loyer and go to work for a com pany that does not have a federa l ly 
reg istered apprent icesh ip  p rog ram , but stays en ro l led and comp letes h is schoo l ing and 
meets h is hou r  requ i rement he wou ld  not be e l ig i b le to take h is jou rneyman 's test 
hav i ng the same ed ucation  credentia ls the way the law reads now, which is typ ical of 
many you ng ad u lts enteri ng  the e lectrica l trade i n  No rth  Dakota . 

I t  is my op i n io n , that education and federa l ly reg istered apprent icesh i p  p rog rams have 
two d ifferent i ntents :  one is to create the sk i l l s  and knowledge to pass the jou rneyman's 
exam and the other  is for bus inesses to compete fa i rly when b idd i ng  federa l ly funded 
p rojects . I do  be l ieve the way the cu rrent law is written these two items a re combined , 
wh ich is  i nappropriate . 

Thank  you for a l l ow ing me to vo ice my concerns .  

S incere ly ,  

.S� 'Yr�. 
Steven S .  M u nd a h l  
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Josh Defoe (Electrical Apprentice) L&K Electric, Williston ND 

Here to support Bill SB  2056 regarding the North Dakota State Electrical Board approved training can be 
one recognized for apprentice's education without having business requirements. 

I recently completed the 576 hours required by the NDSEB though the North Dakota State College of 
Science. I was unaware my company (L&K Electric) was not registered with the Dept. of 
Labor. Therefore, L&K Electric is not a Federally recognized company. Due to this, my ND Journey exam 
application was denied by the NDSEB because I could not receive a certificate of completion from the 
Department of Labor. This drastically effects my career path and is a very impactful financial burden. 

The passage of this bill would benefit not only my career but my personal and family situation as well. 

I appreciate your time regarding this matter and would like to thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Josh Defoe 
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COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL CONTRACTING, SERVICE & REPAIR 

1 /9/20 1 8  
Senate Bill 2056 
Richard J Schwingler with Frontier Electric Inc. 
Bismarck, ND 58504 
I am in favor of this bill 

Mr. or Madam Chairman and members of the committee 

I am in favor of this bill because the licensing and job site training is conducted in our 
state and is monitored by our State Electrical Board. 
By having the Federal Bureau as another step to go through it would just add more 
paperwork, time and expenses to both the Apprentice and the Electrical Contractor that 
he wishes to train under . 
It is hard enough to get people to join our electrical industry 
There is talk about trying to make it easier for construction and licensed trades to come to 
ND to work so why can't we take care of our own ND people and keep things simplified 
so they are willing to become our next tradesmen. 
This bill needs to get passed soon so those men and women of our state who have put in 
their time and dedication to the state of ND can write their test and receive the license 
they have been working so hard for. It would not be fair for them to start over with 
another 3-4 years of electrical job training. 

Thank You, 

Richard J. Schwingler 
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Chairman and members of the committee, my name i s  Cara lea Vogelsang. I am an apprentice 
electric ian, wife, and a mom of 4 from Dickinson, ND. I am in favor of the changes to this  bill because: 

1 . )  It has been a huge goal of mine to become a Journeyman. I have worked extremely hard for 
over 4 years on my apprenticeship program in order to obtain my Journeyman's l icense. In 
November 2018, I submitted my application to write my test, but I was denied and told that 
my education through NDSCS and my hours of experience meant nothing. My goal of 
becoming a Journeyman was put on hold, and so was my Journeyman wage. The pay 
increase, for me, was a perk because I do not provide the main income for my family. 

2 . )  However, I am worried about the other families where the main income is the Apprentice's. 
He/she worked his/her way up to be able to take that test to become a Journeyman so 
he/she could better provide for his/her family, and now he/she needs to start over? That i s  
at  least four years wasted and a scary thought when you are talking about being the main 
provider for your family. 

I ask that you will make these changes as soon as poss ible, because it has impacted a lot of people and 
no family should have to worry about what happens next when they have already put in the work. 
Thank you . 



To the North Dakota Legislative Assembly 
January 9th, 20 1 9  

My name is Brandon Cluff and I work for an electrical company, AH INC. ,  in Dunn County 
ND. The ND Electrical Board had advised me to complete the electrical schooling books and actively 
practice under a Journeyman for 8,000 hours in order to test out for my Journeyman's license . I 
completed the electrical schooling books from North Dakota State College of Science and successfully 
completed the 8 ,000 supervised hours . I am in favor of Bill # 2056 because I worked hard to complete 
the mandated terms that were in affect when I started my j ourney on becoming an electrician in North 
Dakota. I don't think the Federal Department of Labor should have a say in a state regulated and 
controlled licensing matter. I worked hard to complete my education and my hours under the impression 
that I would be able to test out once completed. NDSCS was the best choice for me because in ND you 
have to have schooling along with your apprenticeship hours to test out .  I was able to complete my 
apprenticeship hours while doing my books at home like most online colleges .  I am asking that this 
program is acknowledged so all my time, money and work won't be for nothing as I know many others 
that are here today are hoping for the same. Thank you for your time. 

Signed Brandon Cluff : <ffin� � 
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Com m ittee M e m be rs, 

My n ame  is Chase Ca rson and  I am from G rassy Butte .  I am an a pp rent ice for AH I nc .  out 

of K i l l d eer .  I h ave worked there for over five yea rs . I am a graduate of D icki nson State 

U n iversity with a Bache lor's  Degree in Bus i ness Ad m i n i strat i o n .  After worki ng for AH I nc. fo r 

a bout  a yea r  a n d  a h a lf, I began my schoo l i ng  t h rough the  No rth Da kota State Co l l ege of 

Sci ence in Wahpeton in J a nua ry of 2015, as  I h ad  no pr io r  schoo l i ng  in t he  e l ectr ica l fi e l d .  Wh i l e  

cont i n u i n g  to work fu l l  t ime I have been  ab l e  to comp l ete 5 10 cred it hou rs a nd  h ave begu n 

worki ng  o n  my l a st book to fi n i sh my schoo l i ng  that wou l d  a l low me  to test fo r my l i cense .  

I 'm in favor of th is  b i l l  beca use I h ave spent over $2 ,000 for books and schoo l i ng, as  we l l  

a s  rough ly  500 hou rs o f  persona l  t ime  worki ng on i t  . 

I h ave a wife a n d  a two yea r  o ld  boy and  be i ng  ab l e  to do my schoo l i ng  th rough NDSCS i s  

the  on ly  way I wou l d  h ave been ab l e  to  pu rsue  a ca ree r  i n  t h i s  fi e l d .  I strongly encou rage a l l  of  

you to pass  t h i s  b i l l .  

Th a n ks for you r  t im e, 

Chase  Ca rson  
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Dear  Com mittee Members, 

My n ame  is Tyle r  Thorson and  I am from Mann i ng, No rth Dakota .  I h ave been  an  

a p p rent ice e l ectr i c i an  a t  AH I nc .  s i nce J a nua ry of  2016 .  I ea rned  a bache lor's  d egree i n  Ag 

Bus i n ess from D ick i nson State U n ive rsity i n  December  of 2015 a nd  began worki ng  at AH . I 

bega n tak i ng  e l ectr i ca l c lasses on l i n e  about a h a lf yea r  after sta rt i ng  work .  I h ave comp leted 

th ree of the s ix  books req u i red before be ing ab l e  to ta ke the jou rneyman' s  exam and  have 

sta rted on the  fou rt h .  I h ave spent hund reds  of hou rs after work a nd  on the  weekends  worki ng 

on  my schoo lwork and over $ 1,000 on  books .  

I am in favo r of th i s  b i l l  because it wou l d  a l low me  to cont i n u e  to pu rsue  my goa l s  of 

obta i n i n g  my l i ce n se and  open ing  many doors for my career in t he  e l ectri ca l i n d u stry .  It wou l d  

be  a h uge he l p  fo r my wife and  I ,  a s  we recent ly were ma rr ied i n  Apr i l  o f  2018 .  We bought ou r  

home  i n  M a n n i ng t h i s  l a st fa l l  so  tha t  we  cou l d  both cont i n u e  to  p l a nt o u r  roots a n d  be c loser 

to our jobs .  

I e ncou rage everyone  to  vote i n  favo r of  th i s  b i l l  so that  peop l e  l i ke me  a re ab l e  to 

cont i n u e  to p u rs u e  the i r  goa l s  in the e lectr i ca l  i n d u stry .  

S i ncere ly, 

• Tyle r  Thorson 
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Good morning Mr. Chairman Klein and members of the committee, my name is Clayton Schenck from West 
Fargo, ND. I am here this morning as one of the owners of Magnum Electric Inc . which preforms as an 
electrical contracting business across the state of North Dakota. 

We have reviewed SB 2056 which allows the North Dakota State Electrical Board (NDSEB) to approve 
apprenticeship training rather than the Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship Training along with allowing the board 
to expend funds to encourage potential candidates into this field of employment. 

We feel that this is  an emergency bill that needs to be rectified immediately. We currently have 1 apprentice 
that has completed the Independent Electrical Contractors Association (IEC) 4-year apprenticeship program that 
is not allowed to take the ND j ourneyman' s  exam and further their career due to the Century code the way it is 
written. We have another individual that has completed the North Dakota State College of Science (NDSCS) 
conespondence program that is also not allowed to take the exam due to the same reason. We have 20 
employees currently enrol led in the IEC ' s  apprenticeship courses, 4 of those individuals wil l  be directly affected 
this May 20 1 9  as they wil l  graduate from the program and not be allowed to take the j ourneyman exam. We 
have 3 employees enrolled in the NDSCS conespondence class of which 1 employee wil l  be affected this May 
20 1 9 . 

These individuals have made the commitment to become better apprentice electricians and to help themselves 
.1dvance in their careers to becoming joumeyworkers .  This is the path to higher wages to better themselves and 

their famil ies .  

Our industry has a shortage of qualified, experienced electrical j ourneyworkers .  We need to fil l  the void and 
with programs l ike the IEC and NDSCS we have been able to grow our company from within better than if we 
were to search the state looking for joumeyworkers. We feel that allowing the North Dakota State Electrical 
Board the abi l ity to expend any surplus funds into resources that would increase the awareness of this technical 
field to potential candidates would also benefit the industry and the consumers . 

In closing we feel that the NDSEB is best suited in determining what apprenticeship programs meet the 
requirements of the state of North Dakota. After all , the Laws, Rules and Wiring Standards of North Dakota 
adopted December 1 4t11, 20 1 6  chapter 24. 1 -0 1 -0 1 -0 1  History and functions "The board is charged with the 
responsibili ty to examine applicants and issue l icenses to those having the necessary qualifications and 
knowledge in the l aw of electricity and electrical codes ." This may be a small change to the Century Code but 
has an enmmous effect on many individuals .  

We ask for your support of SB 2056 in its entirety. 

Thank you !, ) / / 

�� 
Clayton Schenck 

.ice President 
Magnum Electric Inc. 

Corporate Office - Fargo 
47 1 Christianson D r. West 
West Fargo ,  ND 58078 
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Jamestown ,  N D  58401  
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D ick inson 
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Testimony for Public Hearing 
Senate Committee on Industry, Business and Labor 

January 9, 2018 

Jeff Kirstein 
Independent Electrical Contractors Association 

102 N. Krohn P lace Suite 214 
Sioux Fal l s, SD 57103 

S. B .  No 2056 - A  B I L L  for an act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 43-09-11 and sections 43-
09-15 and 43-09-15.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to e lectrician qualifications and license 
renewal; and to declare an emergency. 

Good morning Mr. Chairman and Members of the committee. My name is Jeff Kirstein, and I am the 
Executive Director of the Independent Electrical Contractors Association of the Dakotas, Inc. or IEC 
Dakotas. IEC Dakotas is a non-profit organization that operates in North and South Dakota by providing 
e lectrical apprenticeship training in both classrooms and an on line training program. 

I EC Dakotas represents approximately 30 electrical contractors who employ about 150 electrical 
apprentices in North Dakota. I am here in my capacity as Executive Director to ask you to vote in favor 
of Senate Bi l l  2056. This bi l l  wi l l  simplify the process by which our apprentices are able to sit for the 
Journeyman's exam without sacrificing the on-the-job experience or the related instruction that goes 
along with apprenticeship. 

As things stand right now, several graduates of our program are unable to take the journeyman's exam 
because they were not registered by their employer in the Federal apprenticeship program . While the 
Federal program has several benefits to contractors, it is not mandatory that they register their 
apprentices in the federal program. In fact, the vast majority of I EC's member contractors do not 
register their emp loyees in the federal program .  Passage of Senate Bi l l  2056 wi l l  ensure that our 
contractors in North Dakota need not participate in a program that they feel has no benefit to their 
company or to their employees. 

I ask that you pass this bi l l  so that our apprentices are not unnecessari ly held back from career 
advancements and pay raises through no fault of their own. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Jeff Kirstein 
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To the Chairman and Committee Members ; 

Hi ,  my name is R iley Blevins, and I work for AH Inc. out of Killdeer, North Dakota. I am 

appearing today because I am in favor of bill 2056. It is important to me that this passes for the 

convenience that our company works fifty plus hours a week. This program gives me a chance 

to get my schooling hours on my own time, while still supporting myself and my family. I am 

trying to further my career to become a successful journeyman electrician, not to mention the 

time, money and effort it talces that I've put forth already. So I'm asking for this program to 

continue as I know others are too. Thank you for your time and patience. 

Sincerely, Riley S. Blevins 



• 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Daniel Garcia and I am an 
apprentice electrician at AH Inc. out of Killdeer ND. I come before you today on behalf of AH 
Inc. and its electricians on why senate Bill 2056 should pass, and that North Dakota Electrical 
board approved training should be recognized for apprentice ' s  education without having federal 
business requirements. Our opinion in the company on the matter is that a lot of great 
journeyman electricians have come from the program that we've had apprentices enrolling in to 
complete their schooling and we should continue to use it. A lot of people including our own 
have time and money invested into their schoolwork and are getting ready to test for their 
j ourneyman' s license .  As for myself ! think the program is the best way possible for me to be 
able to acquire my school hours and work full time to support 3 kids. The program has 
substantially supported the growth and well being of our company in the number of electricians 
we are able to put out in the field today. Yet there' s  still a shortage on licensed electricians in the 
state. Shouldn't we be trying to put more j ourneyman electricians out in the field rather than 
less? 

Thank you for your time 



Testimony on SB 2056 

Jordan Kannianen - District 4 Senator 

Section 1 - Ed ucat ion requ i rements 

E ight-thousand hours of work experi ence a re req u i red for an a pp rent ice e lectr ic i a n  to qua l ify to 
take the Jou rneyman  E lectr ic i a n  exam .  In 2007, ed ucat ion requ i rements were added to the 
qua l if icat ions, req u i r i ng  e i ther 2 yea rs of app ropri ate study at a board-app roved i n st itut ion  of 
h igher ed ucat ion or a cou rse of study app roved by the  federa l  b u reau  of a pp rent icesh i p  a nd  
tra i n i ng. 

Th is  b i l l  rep l aces the federa l  bu reau of app rent icesh i p  a nd  t ra i n i ng  with the  state e l ectr ica l 
board as  the app rovi ng authority rega rd i ng  app rent icesh i p  t ra i n i ng  cou rses .  Th i s  way, a l l  
educat ion requ i rements wou l d  be unde r  the  a uthority o f  the  state e lectr ica l boa rd .  

N D  State Co l lege of Sc ience, I n dependent E l ectr ica l Contractors a n d  othe rs offer e l ect rica l 
a pprent icesh i p  t ra i n i ng  cou rses that a re not app roved by the  fede ra l  b u reau  but  that  cou ld be 
app roved by the state e lectr ica l board . Confus ion has  resu lted i n  i n d ivid ua l s  tak ing the 
unapp roved cou rses and then not be ing e l ig i b l e  to ta ke the Jou rneyman  exam,  and many 
e l ectr ica l contractors i n  the state (such as  myself) a re not i n  a pos i t ion to regi ster for federa l  
p rograms .  Th i s  l eaves the app rentices worki ng under  these contractors (who a re not ab l e  to 
comp l ete a 2-year  degree)  as not bei ng ab le  to adva nce to a jou rneyman  l i cense .  Somet imes 
u n i ntended consequences take years to bear  fru it, a nd  there a re now app rent ice e l ectr ic i a n s  
be i ng  den ied the opportun ity to  take the  Jou rneyman  E lectr ic i a n ' s exa m .  

The passage of th i s  b i l l  wou l d  resu lt i n  more i n d iv id ua l s  immed i ate ly  be i ng  e l i gi b l e  t o  take the 
Jou rneyman  E l ectric i a n ' s  exam .  

Section 2 - Undertak ing Fund  

Th is  sect ion e l im i nates references to  the  unde rtak i ng fu nd  wh i ch  was  e l im i n ated i n  2015 .  

Section 3 - Authority to expend funds  

Th is  sect ion adds  l anguage to a l low the  state e lectr ica l board to expend  fu nd s  to work with CTE 
and  others to p romote the trade .  

Section 4 - Emergency Cla use 

About 15+ app rent ice e lectr ic i ans  cou l d  be  app roved by the board to take the  Jou rneyman 
exam im med iate ly if the emergency c l au se ca rr ies .  



• 

A tto. c\t\xnex.+ c)_ 
+-e.,6 � 7 , JO I °!  

Test imony on  Senate B i l l  2056 

My n ame  i s  Scott Porsborg, S pec ia l Ass i sta nt Attorney Gene ra l  fo r the ND State 
E l ectr ica l Board .  I ' m he re to add ress the l ega l p rob l em that led to t h i s  b i l l .  If you look at the  
cu rrent  wo rd i ng of  N DCC 43-09-1 1, it says that  one  of  the ways you ca n become e l ig ib l e  to  
become a jou rneyma n  e l ectr ic ia n is to  atte nd  tra i n i ng c l a sses, wh i l e  you' re work ing on  the  job, 
so we ca n en s u re you a re educated i n  t he  techn ica l aspects of be i ng a n  e lectr ic i a n .  

A n u m be r  o f  e nt i t ies p rov ide th i s  t ra i n i ng .  The out reach p rogra m a t  t h e  State Schoo l  of 
Sc i ence i s  one .  The u n ions  a l so p rovide  i t .  Some e lectr ica l contractors set up the i r  own 
p rogra ms to p rovide  the tra i n i ng .  

When  th i s  statute was passed i n  2007, it was passed with the fo l lowi ng l a nguage : 

[ i n  o rde r  to be a jou rneyman  e lectr ic i a n , you mu st h ave] "Successfu l ly com p leted 
a pp re nt i ces h i p  t ra i n i ng a p p roved by the fede ra l  bu reau  of a pp re nt icesh i p  a nd tra i n i ng . "  
{ "BAT" ) 

The execut ive d i rector  ca n exp l a i n  how th i s  i s sue ca me to be known,  but u lt imate ly, I 
was a s ked the q uest i o n  by the boa rd . Ca n we a ccept the outreach p rogram at the School  of 

• Scie nce as t h i s  t ra i n i ng? I a s ked : Is i t  a p p roved by the bu reau  of a p p re nt ices h i p  a nd tra i n i ng?  
The a n swe r was no .  So, we had  no cho ice but  to d isa l low that t ra i n i ng .  Beca use the l a nguage 
of the statute i s  c lea r .  

• 

The re a re othe r  p rob l ems  that have a ri se n with th i s  la nguage .  The statute says 
"successfu l l y  comp l eted" tra i n i ng app roved by BAT. We l l  the JATC - the  u n ion - i s  a pp roved 
by BAT but ha s  a 900-hou r p rogra m .  Most p rograms a re 576 - the  fede ra l  m i n imum .  So, k i d s  
i n  the  JATC p rogra m come to  the boa rd and  say " I 've comp l eted a s  m uch  tra i n i ng  as  th i s  
person ;  ca n I ta ke the test too?" And I a s k  the q uestio n :  "has  he  or  she  successfu l ly completed 
a pp re nt icesh i p  t ra i n i ng a p p roved by the bu rea u  of a p p re nt ices h i p  a n d  tra i n i ng?" And the 
a nswer i s  no, beca use  the  t ra i n i ng  p rogra m BAT a p p roved for the  JATC i s  900 hou rs .  

There a re a l so a n u m be r  of  e lectr ica l contractors that have the i r  own p rograms that  a re 
not a nd do  not wa nt to be a pp roved by the  fede ra l  gove rnment .  The re a re a n u m be r  of 
pa pe rwork req u i rements a nd  pay sca l e  requ i rements that  do a long with that a pp rova l that  do  
not benefit some  contractors .  

So, by remov ing the depa rtment of la bor  from ou r statute a nd  g iv i ng the boa rd the 
a utho r ity to a p p rove p rogra ms, it solves th i s  p rob lem .  That 's how we got he re a nd that's why 
we ask  fo r a do  pass  on  S B  2056 .  
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TESTIMONY in  SUPPORT f SB 2056 E lectrica l Education 

PRESENTED BY JAMES SCHM IDT 

EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, NORTH DAKOTA STATE ELECTRICAL BOARD 

Cha i rma n K le i n  a n d  Members of t he  Com m ittee : 

Senate B i l l 2056 was i ntrod uced with the knowledge a nd support 

of the  No rt h  Da kota State E l ectr ica l Boa rd .  The port ion of the b i l l  

add ress i ng  a pprent icesh ip  educat ion shou ld be cons idered as  a house 

keep i ng i ss ue .  To give you some h isto ry at the 2007 Leg is lat ive sess ion 

a l aw was passed requ i ri ng an educat ion req u i rement fo r a n  i nd iv id ua l  

to  become  a l icensed e lect ric i a n  i n  N D . I d i d  not atten d  a ny of  those 

com mittee hea r i ngs at that t ime but  I was serv ing as a member  of the 

ND State E lectr ica l Boa rd .  I reca l l  the  focus  at that t ime was about 

ma k ing s u re a p p rent ice e lectric ia n s  we re educated and t ra i n ed t h rough 

a proper ed ucat ion a l  path p r ior  to or  d u ri ng  the ir  app rent icesh i p .  After 

the req u i rement for a pprentice educat ion was put i n to p l ace, two 

option s  were ava i l a b l e  for a pp rent ices to meet the  educat ion 

requ i rement .  One opt ion was for a n  a pprent ice to ea rn a 2-yea r 

e lectr ica l degree at a tech n ica l co l lege or  the  other  opt ion  i s  refe rred to 

as "re l ated t ra i n i ng" where the app rent ice wou ld  attend c l a ssroom 

educat ion of 144 hou rs per yea r (tota l of 576 hours )  wh i l e  worki ng at a 

fu l l  t ime e l ectr ica l job for 4 yea rs o r  8,000 hou rs .  

Th is  past August, the ND D i recto r of  t he  US Depa rtment  of  La bor Office 

of Apprent icesh i p, B i sma rck, N D, po i nted out to me t hat ou r  office was 

brea k ing t he  cu rre nt N D  Law N DCC 43-09-11 . 2 (b } ( 1 )  by accept i ng 

app rent ices to write the jou rneyman  exam that have n ot i nc l uded a 

cert ificate of comp let ion issued by the i r  fede ra l  office . I b ro ught th i s  to 

the  attent ion of ou r  boa rd . The boa rd conc l uded, a long with the 

boa rd 's  spec ia l a ss ista nt attorney genera l , that I was to sta rt a ccept i ng 

for exa m o n ly app rent ice a pp l i cat ions  that  i n c l ude the  cert ificate of 

1 

01-07-19 



• 

• 

• 

Atta. 01\ rY\� t 3 
-re1, �7 / at.) i9 

comp let ion  issued by the Fede ra l  DOL. Pr ior  to August o u r  office had  

been accept ing  letters o f  comp l et ion  from the  a pp rent ice ed ucat ion  

p rov iders s u ch as  the  ND Co l l ege of  Sc ience O utreach p rogra m, 

I ndependent E l ect r ica l Contra cto rs, Jo i nt Apprent i ces h i p  a nd  Tra i n i ng 

a nd other  ed ucat ion prov iders .  A requ i rement to rece ive a Federa l 

Depa rtment of La bor  ce rt ificate of comp l et ion,  t he  a pp rent ice wou ld 

a l so need to be en ro l l ed i n  a Federa l Depa rtment of La bor  

app rent ices h i p  p rogra m sponsored by the i r  emp loyer. The ma in  reason 

for c lea n i ng up th is law is seve ra l of the  a pprent ices, emp loyers a nd  

education  p roviders do not h ave a federa l  depa rtment  o f  l a bo r  

app rent ices h i p  programs a nd do  n ot i ntend t o  o r  ca n not create one .  

One of  the  reasons a compa ny wou ld have a depa rtment of  l a bor 

a pp roved p rogra m is for work i ng on  govern ment funded p rojects 

where preva i l i ng wages app ly. I n  v is it i ng with the N D  d i recto r of US 

Depa rtment of La bor, h is ma in  concern was los i ng the i r  n u m ber of 

a pprent ice p rogra ms they h ave ongo i ng if the l aw was to cha nge . I 

a ss u red h im  that if th is law cha nges a nd  puts the  boa rd i n  cha rge of the 

ND a pprent ice educat ion that, by adm i n istrat ive ru le, I wou l d  suggest 

the boa rd create an educat ion com m ittee of t rades person s, wh ich the  

DOL cou l d  pa rt ic ipate i n ,  wou ld rev iew/advise t he  boa rd on  a l l  

educat iona l  a reas fo r e l ectric ia ns  n ot just a pp rent ices h i ps .  

I 've received nea rly 100 ca l ls from a pprent ices a nd the i r  em p loye rs who 

a re ca ught i n  t h is s i tuat ion of  never be ing  a b le  to rece ive a ny type of 

DOL ce rt ificate of comp let ion  beca use of the cu rrent  l aw a nd  wou ld 

never be a b le  to adva nce to be a jou rneyman  e lectr ic ia n or  the i r  

specif ic DOL  a pp rent ices h i p  p rogra m may requ i re more tha n what  is 

req u i red by N DSEB  adm i n istrat ive ru le  wh ich i s  576 hou rs .  Ho ld i ng a n  

app rent ice back l i ke t h is costs t h e m  money i n  lost wages a nd  a l so 

h a nd icaps the  emp loyers from send i ng these emp loyees out to jobs ites 

by themse lves as l icensed jou rneyman  e l ectr ic i ans .  Cu rrent ly we've 

had  to retu rn severa l app l icat i ons  beca use t hese a pprent ices d i d  not 

inc l ude  no r  can  they eve r ea rn the  DO L cert if icate of com plet ion . 

2 
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Severa l weeks ago th is s ituat ion  was brought to the  attent ion of the 
governor's office . I was  ca l l ed to a meet ing there to d iscuss if there was 
a tempora ry so l ut ion fo r th i s  s it u at ion u nt i l  t he  l aw cou l d  be cha nged 
fo r these a pprent ices .  The response from the gove rno r's office was the 
l aw needs to cha nge before the  a pp rent ices cou l d  ta ke the jou rneyman 
exam that does not have a depa rtment of l a bo r  ce rt ificate of 
com plet ion .  

Cu rrent ly u n der the sa me sect ion  of the  North  Da kota Centu ry Code, 
the  boa rd a pproves i nst itut ions  of h igher  ed ucat io n 2-yea r co l lege 
e lectr ica l degree cou rses for the  i n d iv id ua l  who attends  co l lege so why 
not l et the boa rd be the o n ly ent ity that  a l so a pp roves the re l ated 
t ra i n i ng  cou rses for the i nd iv id u a l s  who choose not to go to co l l ege? 

Due to the u rgency of rectify i ng  t h is p rob lem,  Sen ato r Ka n n i a nen has  
put  an  emergency c la use on  t h is b i l l  so o u r  office ca n resume what  we 
were do ing pr ior  to th is past August a n d  a l l ow a pprent ices to ta ke the i r  
exa m wh ich wi l l  put more l icensed e lectr i c i a n s  i n  the  f ie l d  to  fi l l  the gap 
of the workfo rce shortage. 

Th is p roposed b i l l  a l so add resses the shortage of workforce by 
p ropos i ng to expend fu nds to educate a n d  encou rage i nd iv id ua l s  to 
come i nto the e lectrica l t rade .  I h ave met with a nd d iscussed with the  
staff at  ND Ca reer Tech n ica l Ed ucat ion va r ious ways fo r the  N DSEB  to 
t ry so lv ing the e l ect ric i an  workfo rce sho rtage. The d iscuss ions were fo r 
CTE to manage a specia l category i n  wh ich the  boa rd wou ld seek 
d ifferent ways to encourage you ng peop le  i nto the  e lectr ica l trade .  
Some of  the  thoughts were to do a ma rket i ng ca mpa ign ,  offe r 
i ncent ives to become a n  e l ect r ic i a n ,  a pp rent ice scho l a rs h i ps, re imburse 
e lect r ic ia ns  to ass ist i n  h igh  schoo l  i nd ustr ia l a rts e lectr ica l p rograms 
a nd  to exp lo re the fu rther  deve lopment of ed ucat ion in the e lectr ica l 
fi e l d .  

The refo re we  respectfu l ly u rge a do  pass vote on t he  o rig i na l ve rs ion of 

• 
SB  2056 without a ny add it ion a l  a mendments o r  cha nges that others 

3 

01-07-19 



• 

• 

might suggest as  we do not wa nt to de lay passage of t h is emergency 
b i l l  wh ich  wi l l  cont i n ue to ho l d  u p  a pprent ices from ta k ing the i r  N D  
Jou r neyman Exa m .  As soon a s  t h is b i l l  passes a nd  becomes law, o u r  
off ice w i l l  open u p  o u r  confe rence room t o  those app re nt ices that a re 
ca ught  i n  th is s ituat ion and  g ive exams da i ly if th at's what it ta kes to 
a l low them to get on with t he i r  ca reers .  

I t ha nk  the b i l l  sponsors a nd t h is com m ittee for hea ri ng my 
com ments a nd I wou ld be h appy to a n swer a ny q uest ions  you may 
have 
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Steven 5 .  Mundah l 
2255 Eagle Ave .  

Hatton ,  ND  58240 
(701) 799-6310 

S B  Jo0S-

Mr .  o r  Madam Cha i rman and members of the comm ittee , my name is Steven S .  
M undah l from Hatton , North Dakota . I am a cu rrent Master Electr ic ian in  t he  State of 
North Dakota and I am here today to ask for you to vote i n  favor of SB2056 . I wou ld  l i ke 
to exp la in  my reason for be ing here today. 

I am the father of an e lectr ica l  apprentice cu rrent ly en ro l led in the ! EC-Dakotas class 
cu rr icu l um  and he works for a company that has a fede ra l ly reg istered apprenticesh ip  
p rog ram ,  which a l lows h im to  take h is jou rneyman 's  test once h is schoo l i ng is comp lete 
a long with meeti ng h is  hou r  requ i rement. But if my son were to leave the emp loyment 
of h is cu rrent emp loyer and go to work for a company that does not have a federa l ly 
reg istered apprenticesh ip  p rog ram ,  but stays en ro l led and comp letes h is schoo l i ng  and 
meets h is  hour requ i rement he wou ld not be e l i g i b le to take h is jou rneyman's test 
hav ing the same education  credent ia ls the way the law reads now,  wh ich is typ ica l  of 
many young adu lts enter ing the electr ica l  trade in North  Dakota . 

I t  is my op in ion , that ed ucation and federa l ly reg istered apprenticesh i p  p rog rams have 
two d ifferent intents : one is to create the sk i l l s  and knowledge to pass the jou rneyman 's 
exam and the other  is for bus inesses to compete fa i rly when b idd ing  federa l ly funded 
p rojects . I do bel ieve the way the cu rrent law is written these two items are comb ined ,  
which i s  inapprop riate . 

Thank  you for a l lowing me to voice my concerns .  

S incerely ,  

.S± �� 
Steven S .  Mundah l  
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Testimony for Public Hearing 
Senate Committee on Industry, Business and Labor 

February 27, 2019 

Jeff Kirstein 
Executive Director 

Independent Electrical Contractors Association 
102 N .  Krohn Place Suite 214 

Sioux Falls, SD 57103 

S .B .  No 2056 - A  BILL for an act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 43-09-11 and sections 43-
09-15 and 43-09-15.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to electrician qualifications and license 
renewal; and to declare an emergency. 

Good morning Committee Members . My name is Jeff Kirstein, and I am the Executive Director of the 
Independent Electrical Contractors Association of the Dakotas, Inc, or IEC Dakotas. IEC Dakotas is a non
profit organization that operates in North and South Dakota by providing an electrical apprenticeship 
training in both classrooms and an online training program. 

IEC Dakotas represents approximately 30 electrical contractors who employ about 150 electrical 
apprentices in North Dakota. I am here in my capacity as Executive Director to ask you to vote in favor 
of Senate Bill 2056 . This bill will simplify the process by which our apprentices are able to sit for the 
Journeyman's exam without sacrificing the on-the-job experience or the related instruction that goes 
along with apprenticeship. 

As things stand right now, several graduates of our program are unable to take the journeyman's exam 
because they were not registered by their employer in the Federal apprenticeship program. While the 
Federal program has several benefits to contractors, it is not mandatory that they register their 
apprentices in the federal program. In fact, the vast majority of IEC's member contractors do not 
register their employees in the federal program. Passage of Senate Bill 2056 will ensure that our 
contractors in North Dakota need not participate in a program that they feel has no benefit to their 
company or to their employees. 

Additionally, I would like to add the amendment to enable the Electrical Board to expend funds to 
educate and encourage potential electricians, would be of benefit to the entire electrical industry and 
our members strongly support the amendment . 

I ask that you pass this bill so that our apprentices are not unnecessarily held back from career 
advancements and pay raises through no fault of their own. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Since
Zvf-

Jeff Kirstein 

l 
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RBB Electric, Inc. 

fJYac/1/it�nt 0 
-::f�- fJ. 1; J..() I 9 
SB cJ...os-� 

Rieger, Borgen, Benson Electric Inc .  
PO Box 1 3 635  

1 1 23 North 5 1  st Street 
Grand Forks, ND 5 8208 

Phone (70 I )  775 -7404 
Fax (70 1 )  775-74 1 7  

Good Morning, my name i s  Jon Rieger. I am a partner in RBB Electric. We have 
offices in Grand Forks, Fargo, and Bismarck North Dakota. RBB Electric has 
been in business for over 1 6  years and we currently have about 70 employees. 

We are currently suffering a skilled worker labor shortage in North Dakota. It has 
been brought to our attention that there is a problem with how our current law is 
written. North Dakota needs you to pass Senate Bill 2056 .  This law will not 
change how we have been doing anything in North Dakota but will allow us to 
continue on with how we have been doing things. Will this address our skilled 
labor shortage? No, but it will not compound this problem. If we do not pass this 
bill we will surely suffer in the coming months. As people retire we will be losing 
skilled laborers and have no one to replace them. 

The educational requirements for our apprentice electricians will be fulfilled by 
approved colleges and educational training programs, just as we have been doing. 
Some of these are the same colleges you can receive a two year degree from. You 
may be asking why not just get a college degree? Some of our skilled labor does 
not want to go to college or they may not be college material. This is why many 
people have gone into trades. There is also a benefit of training people from the 
ground up . I can tell you as an employer at least 75 % of our journeyman 
electricians we have trained from the start and are still with us today. Retention of 
employees is huge. 

We have several employees who have already completed the four years of 
educational requirements and are currently waiting to test . Additionally, we have 
many apprentice electricians who are partway or almost completely through their 
education requirements . If we don't pass this bill how do we justify their training 
that will do them no good? 

So in closing I am asking you to please pass Senate Bill 2056 to allow our state to 
continue to grow and thrive. 

Thank you. 

Service * Residential * Commercial * Industrial 

PO Box 1 3635 
1 1 23 North 5 1  st Street 
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Cha i rman Kle i n  and members of the Senate I nd ustry ,  Bus iness and Labor Committee , my 
name is Wayde Sick and I am the State D i rector for the Department of Career and Techn ica l 
Education . I am here to testify i n  support of Senate B i l l  2056,  specifica l ly page 3 ,  sect ion 3 ,  
l i nes 1 3  and  14 .  

As you are aware , North Dakota , and  the rest of the country for that matter, is  suffering  from a 
sk i l ls  gap .  We continuously hear that th is sk i l ls gap is  what is ho ld ing our  state's economy from 
g rowing . A so lut ion to attempting to fi l l  th is  gap is  Career and Techn ica l Education or GTE . 
GTE provides career exp loration and hands-on exper ience for students to he lp them find  thei r  
correct career path . Fo r  many years , the perception is  that GTE is for the students that can 't 
hand le col lege ,  but t imes have changed . The workers needed to fi l l  these jobs need to be ab le 
to th i nk  crit ica l ly ,  work with the i r  hands ,  and work as a team , a l l  sk i l l s  that a re taught i n  GTE 
cou rses . 

I n  October of th is year ,  I met James Schm idt with the State Electrical Board . He  was testifying  
i n  front of  an  i nterim leg is lative comm ittee stating the e lectrica l board was i n  need to expend 
the i r  funds and the priority was to spend funds i n  h igh school  GTE p rograms to fi l l  the 
workforce needs ,  specifica l ly for futu re e lectric ians .  Currently there are no  e lectrica l p rograms 
i n  any of ou r  h igh schools .  What we do  have is 22 Bu i ld i ng Trades Programs,  with 
approximate ly 780 students enrol led on an annua l  bas is .  Although ,  e lectrica l standards  a re 
included i n  the bu i l d i ng  trades standards ,  we bel ieve many i nstructors cou ld use help i n  
expand ing  thei r  p rog rams to start meet ing the e lectric ian workforce needs .  

N DCC 1 5-20 . 1 - 1 6 . 1  with i n  the GTE centu ry code chapter, states "The director, with the 
approval of the state board, may accept and use gifts made unconditionally by will or otherwise 
for carrying out the purposes of this chapter. Gifts made under such conditions as in the 
judgment of the state board are proper and consistent with the provisions of this chapter may 
be so accepted and must be held, invested and reinvested, and used in accordance with the 
conditions of the gift. " After vis iti ng with D i rector Schm idt, the Office of Management and 
Bus iness , the State Aud itor's Office and the Attorney Genera l 's  office , we have concluded that 
the North Dakota E lectrica l Board , with the consent of the leg is lature th rough passage of SB  
2056, can "g ift" funds to the Department of Career and  Techn ica l Education to expand the 
access of e lectrica l cu rricu lum to more students . GTE is  i nterested in partneri ng with the 
e lectrica l board ,  not to i ncrease our budget, but to fu rther  engage students by connecting  them 
with employers . Early ideas we have had are to develop a statewide market ing campa ign for 
e lectrica l careers ,  h i re an  i nd iv idual  to engage with students i n  the h igh  schools ,  develop or  
purchase cu rricu l um ,  i nstructor tra in i ng ,  etc . GTE wants to partner  with bus iness and i ndustry 
to p rovide for access to a l l  students and wi l l  fo l low the Electrica l Board 's  lead with the i r  i ntent . 

• 
This conc ludes my testimony and I wou ld be happy to answer any questions at th is time .  



• 
Testimony in Support of Senate B i l l  2056 

Presented by Ash ley Wind horst, Admin istrative Assistant, North Da kota State E lectrica l Boa rd 

Mr. Cha i rman, Members of the Committee: 

I am in fu l l  support of SB 2056. As the ind ividu a l  that processes the appl ications for exam, I fee l  th is is a 

sma l l  techn ica l ity when it comes to who the completion certificate comes from which has now 

prevented ind ividua ls from advanc ing i n  the i r  careers. The completion certificates NDSEB has accepted 

prior to being told we were break ing the law, were from the programs  which have a l l  been reviewed and 

approved by the Depa rtment of La bor. I was unaware that an ind ividua l  cou ld not obta in a completion 

from DOL un less they were federa l ly registe red .  This requ i rement has prevented many ind ividua l s  from 

ta king the i r  exam, which not only puts a ha rdsh ip on the m  but the i r  emp loyers as we l l. 

• 
Thank you for your time, if you have any questions, I would be happy to try and answer them . 

• 

I 
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Reid Mann (Bra nch Manager) L&K Electric, Wi ll iston ND .  

Russell Wyma n  (Supervisor) L&K  Electric, Wil l iston ND .  
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Here to support B ill SB 2056 i n  rega rd to North Dakota State Electrical Boa rd a pproved tra in i ng is ab le to 
be one recognized for a pprentice's educatio n  without having business requ i rements. 

L&K Electric was led to bel ieve that the No rth Dakota State College of Science Outreach Program was 
app roved education for electrical apprentices. L&K E lectr ic was unawa re that the US Dept. of Labor was 
i nvolved and does not feel it's necessa ry fo r them to be invo lved . L&K E lectric has not done a ny Federa l 
p rojects in the past. We a re confident the N DSEB  can set the standa rds for  o u r  apprentices whether it 
be online tra i n ing o r  classroom tra in ing so p lease remove the federal department labor req u i rement 
from ND law. 

L&K Electric cu rrently has two apprent ices unab le to test due to th is issue which is hu rt ing ou r  business 
and  the two employees mentioned. 

Tha nk you for you r  t ime a nd consideration regard i ng th is matter. 

Sincerely, 

Reid Mann, B ra nch Manager 

Russell Wyman, E lectrical Supervisor 
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Josh Defoe ( Electrical Apprentice) L&K Electric, Will iston ND 

Here to support B i ll SB 2056 regard ing the N orth Dakota State Electrical Board approved train ing can be 
one recogn ized for apprentice's ed ucation without having business requ i rements. 

I recently completed the 576 hours requ i red by the NDSEB  though the North Dakota State College of 
Science. I was unaware my company ( L&K Electric) was not registered with the Dept. of 
Labor. Therefore, L&K Electric is not a Federally recogn ized company. Due to th is, my ND Jou rney exam 
app l ication was denied by the NDSEB because I could not receive a certificate of completion from the 
Department of Labor. Th is d rastically effects my career path and is a very impactful financial burden. 

The passage of this bill would benefit not only my career but my personal and family situation as well . 

I apprec iate you r  t ime regard ing th is matter and would l ike to thank  you for you r  consideration . 

S incerely, 

Josh Defoe 

( 
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Cha i rman and members of the committee ,  my name is Darcy Schmidt I am a master 
e lectri c ian from D ickinson North Dakota I 'm  in  favor of the changes to th is  b i l l  because 

1 .  As the end user  of e lectric i ans ,  we need to have experience l i censed e lectric ians 
and the way it is now we cant get any of our  experienced apprentices l i censed 
when they have fo l lowed what they thought were the steps to advance the i r  
career i f  they need to start over we wi l l  have a shortage i n  North Dakota of  good 
e lectric ians a l so if th i s  is not changed and we have to say a l l  e lectric ian that 
tested since 2008 are not l icensed th is wi l l  defia ntly cause a very big shortage of 
e lectric ians  in North Dakota 

2 .  So I ask that you make these changes as soon a s  poss ib le  so we can a l l  keep  
do ing a great job i n  the electrica l fie ld  

3 .  Thank you 
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Good M orning. My name is Brad Wangler. I am a Master E lectrici a n  and owner/operator of Rugby 
E lectric, located i n  Rugby North Dakota . We were establ ished in 2015 a nd  currently employ 3 
apprentices. 

I am here to testify on behalf of my company and my apprentice, Mr. Brady Olsen .  

Mr .  Olsen was employed by my company on 1 May 2016. S ince his employment date, M r. Olsen has 
worked as my apprentice for a total of 5,225 .5  hours .  These hours, in conjunct ion with apprent ice hours 
served with Bartsch Electric of Rugby, North Dakota gave Mr. O lsen more than the qua l i fying number of 
hours {8,000) necessary to become eligible to take the Journeyman's Licens ing Examination. 

I n  October 2018, M r. Olsen successfu l l y  comp leted the Jou rneyman's Licensing Exam ination Preparat ion 
Course . After completing this course, M r. Olsen submitted to the State E lectrical Board, a l l  of the 
requ i red paperwork, and  requested a date to take the Journeyman's L icens ing Examination . Th is 
request was denied . U pon fu rther i nvestigation, it was b rought to our attention that the reason this was 
den ied is because his hours were not properly registered with the Bureau of Labor. Rather, they were 
accumulated through verifiab le payrol l  reports and submitted to the State E lectrical Board for thei r 
a pprova l .  M r. Olsen has employment verification documentation from myse l f  as we l l  as  his previous 
employer, and i s  in  excess of the requ i red 8,000 hours to take the test . 

As a new electrica l  contractor in the State of North Dakota ,  I was unaware of the requ i rement to register 
with the Bureau of Labor. Mr. Olsen is currently on ho ld i n  h i s  ab i l ity to take h is journeyman's test unt i l  
th is  matter is reso lved . I f  the State does not mainta i n  control of these hou rs, we fea r  that he wou ld  
stand to  lose credit for the hou rs that he has worked while unregistered with the Bureau of  Labor. This 
wou ld prove detrimental to his desire to remain active in the Electrica l  work place. 

Final ly, as a new contractor with the intent to grow my business within the State of North Dakota, the 
passing of this Bi l l  i s  critica l  to _our  success . We have reached our maximum for apprentice to 
jou rneyman ratio, and every day that goes on without reso l ution to th is matter is costi ng us both 
financial ly as we l l  as missed opportunit ies. We appreciate your cons ideration . Thank you . 

I 
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1 333 S 22nd Street, Suite 1 00 Bismarck, ND 58504 Telephone 70 1 -222-8893 

COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL CONTRACTING, SERVICE & REPAIR 

1 /9/20 1 8  
Senate Bill 2056 
Richard J Schwingler with Frontier Electric Inc. 
Bismarck, ND 58504 
I am in favor of this bill 

Mr. or Madam Chairman and members of the committee 

I am in favor of this bill because the licensing and job site training is conducted in our 
state and is monitored by our State Electrical Board. 

Fax 701 -222-8586 

By having the Federal Bureau as another step to go through it would just add more 
paperwork, time and expenses to both the Apprentice and the Electrical Contractor that 
he wishes to train under. 
It is hard enough to get people to join our electrical industry 
There is talk about trying to make it easier for construction and licensed trades to come to 
ND to work so why can't we take care of our own ND people and keep things simplified 
so they are willing to become our next tradesmen. 
This bill needs to get passed soon so those men and women of our state who have put in 
their time and dedication to the state of ND can write their test and receive the license 
they have been working so hard for. It would not be fair for them to start over with 
another 3-4 years of electrical job training. 

Thank You, 

Richard J. Schwingler 
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Cha i rman and members of the committee, my name is Cara lea Voge lsang . I am  a n  apprent ice 
e lectrician, wife, and a mom of 4 from Dick inson, N D. I am in favo r of the changes to th is b i l l  because : 

1 . )  It has been a huge goa l  of m ine to become a Jou rneyman. I have worked extremely ha rd for 
over 4 yea rs on my apprent icesh ip program in order to obta i n  my Journeyman's l icense. In 
November 2018, I submitted my a pp l ication to write my test, but I was denied and told that 
my education through NDSCS and my hours of experience meant nothing .  My goa l  of 
becoming a Journeyman was put on ho ld, and so was my Journeyman wage .  The pay 
increase, fo r me, was a perk beca use I do not prov ide the ma in income for my fami ly. 

2 . )  However, I am  worried a bout the other fam i l ies where the ma in income is the Apprentice's. 
He/she worked h is/her way up  to be ab le to take that test to become a Journeyman so 
he/she cou ld  better provide for h is/her  fam i ly, and now he/she needs to sta rt over? That is  
at  least fou r  yea rs wasted and a sca ry thought when you a re ta lk ing about being the ma in 
provider fo r you r  fami ly. 

I ask that  you wi l l  make these changes a s  soon as possib le, beca use it has  impacted a lot of people and 
no fam i l y  shou ld have to worry a bout what happens next when they h ave a l ready put in the work. 
Thank you . 

( 
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Testimony 
Senate Bi l l  2056 

Senate I ndustry, Business & Labo r Committee 
January 9th

, 2019 
Bi l l  Ka lanek 

Nationa l E lectrica l  Contractors Associat ion, Dakotas Cha pter 

Good Afternoon Chairman Klein and members of the committee. My name is Bi l l  Kalanek and I'm here 
today on behalf the Dakotas Cha pter of the Nationa l E lectrica l Contractors Association. I'd l i ke to 
express our support of the concept of the bi l l .  

I think we a l l  recognize the need for highly ski l led men & women working in the trades here in ND. We 
at N ECA believe this bi l l  was conceived with that intention. There is a great need for more wel l  t rained 
e lectricians in the state and with some amendments I think we can accompl i sh this. 

The orig ina l l anguage of the bi l l  strikes the reference in code to the "federa l bureau of apprenticeship 
and training", we feel that a lthough the intent of this may be to a l low other options when it comes to 
tra ining, it removes from code the reference to a nat iona l  standa rd recognized throughout the United 
States. With the amendment I've d i stributed I bel ieve we can accompl i sh the goa l the State E lectrica l 
Boa rd is seeking and ma inta in the integrity of what is an accepted standa rd. 

We would a lso suggest that the last amendment to the code on Page 3 be deleted as  there is no 
definition of "power limited technicians" in code. Additiona l ly, it is the mandate of the State E lectrica l 
Boa rd to l icense and inspect, it is not designed to provide education. 

Please consider the amendments provided and I a ppreciate the committee's time today. 

Thank you 
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My name i s  Chase Carson and I a m  from G rassy Butte. I a m  an apprentice for AH Inc. out 

of K i l l deer .  I have worked there for over five years . I am a grad uate of Dickinson State 

University with a Bachelor' s  Degree in Business Ad ministration. After working for AH Inc. for 

about a year and a half, I began my schooling th rough the North Dakota State Col lege of 

Science in Wahpeton in January of 2015, as I had no prior schooling in the electrical fie l d .  Whi le 

continuing to work fu l l  time  I have been able to complete 5 10 credit hou rs and have begun 

working on my last book to finish my schooling that wou ld  al low me to test for my license. 

I'm in favor  of this bi l l  because  I have spent over $2,000 for books and schooling, as wel l 

as rough ly 500 hou rs of personal time working on it . 

I have a wife and a two year o ld  boy and being a b le to do my  schooling th rough N DSCS is 

the on ly way I wou ld  have b een ab le  to pu rsue a caree r  in this fie l d .  I strongly encou rage a l l  of 

you to pass this bil l .  

Thanks for you r  time, 

0- C-
Chase Carson 



• Dear Committee Members, 

My name is  Tyler Thorson and I am from Mann i ng, North Dakota. I have been an 

app rentice e lectr ic ian at AH I nc .  s ince January of 2016 .  I earned a bachelor's degree in Ag 

Bus iness from D ickinson State Un iversity in December of 2015 and began work ing at AH. I 

began taking electr ica l c lasses on l ine about a h a lf year after sta rt i ng  work. I have com p leted 

th ree of the six books requ i red before being ab le to take the jou rneyman's exam and have 

started on the fourth . I have spent h und reds of hours after work and on the weekends worki n g  

on  my schoolwork and over $1,000 on  books. 

I am in favor of th i s  b i l l  because it wou ld  al low me to cont inue to pu rsue my goals  of 

obta in ing my l i cense and openi ng many doors for my career in the electr ica l  i n du stry. It wou l d  

• 
be a h uge he lp for my wife and I, as we recent ly were m arr ied in Apr i l of 2018.  We bought ou r  

home in  Manning th i s  last fal l  so  that we cou ld both cont inue to  p lant our roots and  be closer 

• 

to our  jobs. 

I encou rage everyone to vote i n  favor of th i s  b i l l  so that peop le l i ke me are ab le  to 

cont inue to pu rsue thei r goa ls  in  the e lectri cal indu stry. 

S incerely, 

Tyler Thorson 
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To the North Dakota Legislative Assembly 
January 9th, 20 1 9  
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My name i s  Brandon Cluff and I work for an electrical company, AH INC. ,  in Dunn County 
ND. The ND Electrical Board had advised me to complete the electrical schooling books and actively 
practice under a Journeyman for 8 ,000 hours in order to test out for my Journeyman's license . I 
completed the electrical schoo ling books from North Dakota State College of Science and successfully 
completed the 8 ,000 supervised hours . I am in favor of Bill # 2056 because I worked hard to complete 
the mandated terms that were in affect when I started my j ourney on becoming an electrician in North 
Dakota. I don't think the Federal Department of Labor should have a say in a state regulated and 
controlled l icensing matter. I worked hard to complete my education and my hours under the impression 
that I would be able to test out once completed. NDSCS was the best choice for me because in ND you 
have to have schooling along with your apprenticeship hours to test out. I was able to complete my 
apprenticeship hours while doing my books at home like most online colleges. I am asking that this 
program is acknowledged so all my time, money and work won't be for nothing as I know many others 
that are here today are hoping for the same. Thank you for your time. 

Signed Brandon Cluff �-ti._, � � 

\ 
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"Quality doesn 't cost, it pays " ,___ __________ _ 

January 9 th
, 20 1 9  

Good morning Mr. Chairman Klein and members o f  the committee, my name i s  Clayton Schenck from West 
Fargo, ND. I am here this morning as one of the owners of Magnum Electric Inc .  which preforms as an 
electrical contracting business across the state of North Dakota. 

We have reviewed SB 2056 which al lows the N011h Dakota State Electrical Board (NDSE13) to approve 
apprenticeship training rather than the Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship Training along with allowing the board 
to expend funds to encourage potential candidates into this field of employment. 

We feel that this is an emergency bill that needs to be rectified immediately. We currently have 1 apprentice 
that has completed the Independent Electrical Contractors Association (IEC) 4-year apprenticeship program that 
is not allowed to take the ND journeyman's exam and fu11her their career due to the Century code the way it is 
written. We have another individual that has completed the North Dakota State College of Science (NDSCS) 
correspondence program that is also not allowed to take the exam due to the same reason. We have 20 
employees currently emolled in the IEC' s  apprenticeship courses, 4 of those individuals will be directly affected 
this May 20 1 9  as they will graduate from the program and not be allowed to take the j ourneyman exam. We 
have 3 employees enrolled in the NDSCS correspondence class of which 1 employee will be affected this May 
20 1 9  

• 
These individuals have made the commitment to become better apprentice electricians and to help themselves 
;1dvance in their careers to becoming journeyworkers. This is the path to higher wages to better themselves and 
their families. 

Our industry has a shortage of qualified, experienced electrical journeyworkers. We need to fill the void and 
with programs like the IEC and NDSCS we have been able to grow om company from within better than if we 
were to search the state looking for journeyworkers. We feel that allowing the North Dakota State Electrical 
Board the abi lity to expend any surplus funds into resources that would increase the awareness of this technical 
field to potential candidates would also benefit the industry and the consumers . 

In closing we feel that the NDSEB is best suited in determining what apprenticeship programs meet the 
requirements of th_e state of North Dakota. After all, the Laws, Rules and Wiring Standards of North Dakota 
adopted December 1 41'\ 20 1 6  chapter 24. 1 -0 1 -0 1 -0 1  History and functions "The board is charged with the 
responsibility to examine applicants and issue licenses to those having the necessary qualifications and 
knowledge in the law of electricity and electrical codes." This may be a small change to the Century Code but 
has an enormous effect on many individuals. 

We ask for your suppo11 of SB 2056 in  its entirety. 

Thank you !
, ) / 

���L_ 
Clayton Schenck 

• 
· 'ice President 

·1\1:agnum Electric Inc . 

Corporate Office - Fargo 
471 Ch ristianson Dr .  West 
West Fargo,  ND 58078 

Jamestown 
31 8 Bus iness Loop W 
Jamestown,  ND 58401 

Bismarck 
2720 Broadway Ave 
Bismarck , ND 58501 

D ick i nson 
1 24 48th Ave SW 
Dickinson ,  ND 58601 
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Hi ,  my name is Riley Blevins , and I work for AH Inc . out of Killdeer, North Dakota. I am 
appearing today because I am in favor of bill 2056. It is important to me that this passes for the 

convenience that our company works fifty plus hours a week. This program gives me a chance 

to get my schooling hours on my own time, while still supporting myself and my family. I am 

trying to further my career to become a successful journeyman electrician, not to mention the 
time, money and effort it takes that I've put forth already. So I'm asking for this program to 

continue as I know others are too. Thank you tor your time and patience. 

Sincerely, Riley S. Blevins 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. My name is Daniel Garcia and I am an 
apprentice electrician at AH Inc. out of Killdeer ND. I come before you today on behalf of AH 
Inc . and its electricians on why senate Bill 2056 should pass, and that North Dakota Electrical 
board approved training should be recognized for apprentice ' s  education without having federal 
business requirements. Our opinion in the company on the matter is  that a lot of great 
journeyman electricians have come from the program that we've had apprentices enroll ing in to 
complete their schooling and we should continue to use it. A lot of people including our own 
have time and money invested into their schoolwork and are getting ready to test for their 
j ourneyman's  license. As for myself l think the program is the best way possible for me to be 
able to acquire my school hours and work full time to support 3 kids. The program has 
substantially supported the growth and well being of our company in the number of electricians 
we are able to put out in the field today. Yet there ' s  sti l l a shortage on licensed electricians in the 
state. Shouldn't we be trying to put more journeyman electricians out in the field rather than 
less? 

Thank you for your time 

\ 
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9 J anuary 2019 

To Whom it may concern ,  

As a Master e lectric ian work ing  in the o i l  fie l ds of Western North Dakota s ince 2008, I 
s u pport the legis lat ion a l lowi ng e lectr ica l  app rent ices to acq u i re the i r  n eeded e lectrica l 
educat ion by non t rad it iona l  means .  

The p ressu re to comp l ete ou r  projects keeps us i n  the  fie ld  fo r extended  per iods of the 
day and week. A typ ica l  day is 10 hou rs on  the  job a nd  u sua l ly an hou r  comm ute to and from 
the project . Our norma l  work week is 6 days but can change to 7 twelve hour  days during 
sh ut downs or  sta rt up of p l ants. The few rema i n i ng hou rs d u ri ng  the day do not a l low for 
fo rma l  i n  house tra i n i ng. We re ly on  the correspondence sty l e  cou rses offered t h rough the 
No rth Dakota State School of Science i n  Wahpeton .  

• In  the 10 p l u s  years I 've been worki ng  i n  the N D  o i l  patch ,  we have never b id  o n  any 

• 

Federa l  Bacon/Davis p rojects that wou ld  req u i re ou r  compa ny to registe r ou r  apprentices .  
We cu rrently have severa l app rentices that  a re ready to test out b ut a re unab l e  to due  so 
because of th i s  flaw in  the p revious legis lat ion requ i ri n g  Federa l  registrat ion . The Federa l  
government shou ld  have no i n fl ue nce whatsoever i n  the State l i cens ing of No rth Dakota 
E l ectri c ia ns .  

I wou ld imp lo re the Legis l ators to reverse th i s  overs ite and  a l low the No rth Dakota 
State Board of E lectr ic ity to resume  l icens i ng  requ i rement as they were pr ior to th i s .  

S i ncerely, 

Stephen  Patr ick Reger 
USN Ret i red 

� /,,J/ t l  t hJ ( fl ftf" r;'f ff'r,l/C 
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January 9, 20 1 9  

Chairman Klein and Members of the Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 

My name is Matt Koble and I am the Director of Human Resources for Magnum Electric, an electrical 
contractor based in West Fargo, ND and has 3 other locations across the state . 

I am here in support of Senate Bi l l  2056, of which changes current wording of the North Dakota Century Code . 
It does this to el iminate confusion on which entity can approve electrician apprenticeship program completion, 
then al lowing the North Dakota State Electrical Board (NDSEB) to approve apprentices in ND to sit for their  
Journeyman' s  Exam. I am also in  support of the NDSEB being able to expend funds to help promote the 
electrical industry to future generations and help encourage them that the industry is a strong career choice for 
thei r  futures. 

What i s  currently happening, is  that the Century Code as written states that a l l  electrician apprenticeship 
training in  ND needs to be approved by the (formally named) Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training 
(currently named US Department of Labor (DOL), Office of Apprenticeship Training) . In practice, the NDSEB 
has had the last say on which schools and/or apprenticeship programs have their  cutTiculums approved in 
accordance with the electrical codes and practices of the State of ND. This  is done for the benefit of consumers 

. (homeowners, businesses, industries, etc . )  by the NDSEB as a quality control measure, as not al l schools and 
forms of education are equal . This education that NDSEB then approves,  qualifies said apprentice electricians 
to test for their Journeyman's  Exam, and some day also their Master' s  Exam with additional required 
experience . With current wording in the Century Code, the NDSEB doesn ' t  truly have final say on which 
schools or programs are up to the standards of the NDSEB and ND. 

With that current wording, our company currently has 2 apprentices that are qual ified to test for their  
Journeyman' s  Exam today, but are not at thi s  time allowed to do so as their education was not Federally 
registered as asked by the Century Code .  In our business practices, we have not done so as the paperwork and 
compl iance is an additional level of burden and our apprentices would only need to be registered with the DOL 
if we were to pay them an apprenticeship rate ( lower pay rate) on Federal Prevai l ing Wage projects . We do not 
perform an abundance of these type of proj ects, and have instead opted to pay the full pay rates on these 
proj ects (apprentices paid at same level as Journeymen) . These 2 apprentices have completed the required 576 
hours of education from NDSEB approved schools (Independent Electrical Contractors ( IEC) and a lso No1ih 
Dakota State College of Science (NDSCS)) and 8,000 hours of experience as needed by the NDSEB . But 
because the schooling and hours were not "registered" with the US DOL, via the Century Code the NDSEB 
won ' t  currently al low them to advance their careers that they have worked so hard towards over more than 4 
years . Come May of this year, we wi l l  have an additional 5 apprentices stopped at the same point in their 
careers due to this current wording. In the following 3 years we would have an additional 1 8  apprentices 
stopped as wel l .  To put that into comparison, please realize that we are only j ust one of the many electrical 
contractors that operate in this S tate and the others surely have apprentices that this Century Code wording i s  
and wil l  be  impacting. 
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Changing of this wording will not lessen the importance of the US  DOL, Office of Apprenticeship Training and 
the apprenticeship programs they oversee. It allows the NDSEB to be the final say when it comes to curriculum 
and the quality of these said programs, and again performing a type of qual ity control for the consumers of ND.  
The US DOL doesn ' t  have set "standards" when it comes to apprenticeship education curriculum, nor do they 
approve or sanction providers of education. The US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship has more of a purpose to 
increase apprenticeship opportunities across many di fferent trades and occupations, and provide strong paths to 
the middle-c lass for employees whi le also helping employers gain much needed skilled and educated staff 
during these times of tough hiring markets .  In many cases, the US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship works 
directly with an organization or single employer to create an apprenticeship program via their set Federal 
standards .  But, those standards more apply to the duration of on-the-job training, how advancement of wages 
occurs, and that education is a "requirement" but do not lay out whom provides said  education or who is 
qual ified to provide it. The US DOL, Office of Apprenticeship is doing its best for the individual benefit of 
employees and employers, whi le  the NDSEB is  looking out for the end users (consumers) of the electrical 
industry. 

Giving the NDSEB the abi lity to also expend surplus funds to promote the electrical industry is also a must, as 
there is a nationwide mass shortage of electricians. Employers and industry spend a large amount of time 
promoting our trade to high schools  and the general publ ic already. The electrical industry is a strong path to a 
career that can support the famil ies and other industries of North Dakota, but not enough people are aware of it .  
By having the NDSEB also support and promote the same industry it oversees, it creates new opportunities 

. within the state for organizations to grow and in the long-term create a stronger, safer, and even more educated 
workforce. 

In passing of Senate Bi l l  2056,  i t wil l  allow the NDSEB to once again have the final say on which 
apprenticeship programs or schoo l s  meet the standards of North Dakota and this State ' s  Journeyman and Master 
E lectrician testing requirements. It will also allow the NDSEB to expend surplus funds to help promote the 
industry as a whole, and help grow future professional and knowledgeable electricians for the State of North 
Dakota. 

Thank you for spending time to read through thi s  testimony, and we ask for your support without amendments 
for Senate Bill 2056.  

Sincerely ,  

Matt Koble 
HR Director 
Magnum Electric Inc 
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